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And The Transfer Of Twelve (12) Geriatric-Psychiatric Beds

From Erlanger North Hospital

ERLANGER HEALTH SYSTEM
Chattanooga, Tennessee



Section A

APPLICANT PROFILE

Erlanger Behavioral Health
CON Application -- Page 2 03/14/16 2:11 PM



Section A: APPLICANT PROFILE

Please enter all Section A responses on this form. All
questions must be answered. If an item does not apply,
please indicate “N/A”. Attach appropriate documentation as
an Appendix at the end of the application and reference the

applicable item Number on the attachement.

1. Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution.

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC

A Site Located At The Intersection Of
North Holtzclaw Avenue & Citico Avenue

Hamilton County
Chattanooga, TN 37404

2. Contact Person Available For Responses To Questions.

Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President
Planning & Business Development
Erlanger Health System
975 East 3" Street
Chattanooga, TN 37403

(423) 778-8088

(423) 778-5776 —-- FAX
Joseph.Winick@erlanger.org -- E-Mail
3. Owner of the Facility, Agency, or Institution.

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC
975 East 3™ Street

Hamilton County

Chattanooga, TN 37403

4. Type of Ownership or Control.
A. Sole Proprietorship
B. Partnership
Cs; Limited Partnership
D. Corporation (For Profit)
E. Corporation (Not-for-Profit)
F. Governmental (State of TN or Political Subdivision)
G. Joint Venture
H. Limited Liability Company
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I. Other (Specify)

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL
ATTACHMENTS.

-— A copy of the Articles Of Organization 1ssued

by the Tennessee Secretary of State is
attached at the end of this CON application.

Sr Name of Management / Operating Entity (if applicable).

** Not Applicable. **

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCFE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL

ATTACHMENTS.
6. Legal Interest in the Site of the Institution

(Check One)

A. Ownership

B. Option to Purchase X

Ch Lease of _ Years

D. Option to Lease )

E. Other (Specify)

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL
ATTACHMENTS.

7. Type of Institution
(Check as appropriate — more than one
response may apply)

A. Hospital (Specify)

vy,

Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center
(ASTC), Multi-Specialty

C. ASTC, Single Specialty

D. Home Health Agency

E. Hospice

F. Mental Health Hospital X
G.

Mental Health Residential Treatment
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Facility
Mental Health Institutional Habilitation
Facility (ICF/MR)
Nursing Home
Outpatient Diagnostic Center
Recuperation Center
Rehabilitation Facility
Residential Hospice
Non-Residential Methadone Facility
Birthing Center
Other Outpatient Facility (Specify)

o

moOoOZ2 =2 XNgH

1O

Other (Specify)

8. Purpose of Review
(Circle Letter(s) as appropriate - more than one
response may apply)

New Institution X
Replacement/Existing Facility
Modification/Existing Facility
Initiation of Health Care Service
As Defined In TCA § 68-11-1607(4)
(Specify)

(ol @R vel =

Psychiatric Services X
E. Discontinuance of OB Services
F. Acquisition of Equipment
G. Change in Beds X
[Please note the type of change by underlining
the appropriate response:
Increase, Decrease, Designation,
Distribution, Conversion, Relocation]
H. Change of Location
I. Other (Specify)

9. Bed Complement Data
Please indicate current and proposed distribution
and certification of facility beds.
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Medical
Surgical

Neonatal
Pediatric

QZEZFA-"ZmQERUOW >

TOTAL

Licensed (*) CON Staffed Beds Beds at
Beds Beds Beds Proposed Completion

Long-Term Care Hospital
Obstetrical
ICU/CCU

Adult Psychiatric 24 24
Geriatric Psychiatric 24 24
Child / Adolescent Psychiatric 18 18
Rehabilitation

Nursing Facility (Non — Medicaid Certified)

Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)

Nursing Facility Level 2 (Medicare only)

Nursing Facility Level 2

(dually certified Medicaid / Medicare )

ICF /MR

LT

R. Child and

Adult Chemical Dependency

22 22
Adolescent Chemical

Dependency
S. Swing Beds
T. Mental Health Residential Treatment
U. Residential Hospice

TOTAL 88 88

(*) CON Beds approved but not yet in service.

10.

11.

Notes

(1) Erlanger Behavioral Health seeks approval for the
addition of 76 psychiatric beds with this CON.

(2) Erlanger North Hospital currently operates twelve (12)
Geriatric-Psychiatric beds and will transfer these beds
to Erlanger Behavioral Health.

Medicare Provider Number Application will be made
prior to opening of the facility.

Certification Type

Medicaid Provider Number Application will be made
prior to opening of the facility.
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Certification Type

12. If this is a new facility, will certification be
sought for Medicare and / or Medicaid ?

Yes X No

13. Identify all TennCare Managed Care Organizations /
Behavioral Health Organizations (MCO’s/BHO’s)
operating in the proposed service area. Will
this project involve the treatment of TennCare
participants ? Yes  If the response to this
item is yes, please identify all MCO’s/BHO’s with
which the applicant has contracted or plamns to
contract.

Discuss any out-of-network relationships in place
with MCO’s/BHO’s in the area.

Response

It is anticipated that Erlanger Behavioral Health
will have patient service agreements with substantially the

same Managed Care Organizations (“"MCO’'s”) as Erlanger
Health System, as well as other Behavioral Health
Organizations (“BHO’s”). These agreements will be

developed separately from the MCO contracts which are
currently in place with Erlanger Health System.

Erlanger Health System is well positioned to
develop agreements with MCO’s and BHO’s in the service
area. With the initiation of the Health Care Exchanges
under the Affordable Care Act on January 1, 2014; Blue
Network E enrolled over 10,000 uninsured people and
Erlanger is the only provider in this network. Further, an
additional 7,000 people were enrolled in Blue Network S and
Erlanger is one of only two providers in this network.
Erlanger is the low cost and safety net provider in the
regional service area and participates in narrow networks
to facilitate needed care for those who would otherwise not
be able to receive it.

Erlanger Health system currently has contracts
with the following MCO’s.
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A. TennCare Managed Care Organizations

== BlueCare

—-— TennCare Select

-— AmeriGroup Community Care

—-— United Healthcare Community Plan

B. Georgla Medicaid Managed Care Organizations

—— AmeriGroup Community Care
—— Peach State Health Plan
—-— WellCare Of Georgia

C. Commercial Managed Care Organizations

-— Blue Cross / Blue Shield of Tennessee
- Blue Network P
- Blue Network S
- Blue Network E
— Blue CoverTN
—- Cover Kids
— AccessTN
- Blue Advantage
—— Blue Cross of Georgia (HMO & Indemnity)
-- Baptist Health Plan

—— CIGNA Healthcare of Tennessee, Inc.
(includes LocalPlus)

—— CIGNA Lifesource (Transplant Network)

—— UNITED Healthcare of Tennessee, Inc.
(Commercial & Medicare Advantage)

—-— Aetna Health

-— Health Value Management D/B/A Choice Care
Network (Commercial & Medicare Advantage)

—— HUMANA
(Choicecare Network, HMO, PPO, POS &
Medicare Advantage)

—— HUMANA Military
—-— Cigna-HealthSpring
(Commercial & Medicare Advantage)
—-— WellCare Medicare
—-- Olympus Managed Health Care, Inc.
—— TriWest (VAPC3)

D. Alliances
—— Health One Alliance

E. Networks
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—— Multi-Plan (includes Beech Street & PHCS)
—-— MCS Patient Centered Healthcare

—— National Provider Network

—— NovaNet (group health)

-—- USA Managed Care Corp.

——- MedCost

—-—- Alliant Health Plan

-— Crescent Preferred Provider Organization
~-- Evolutions Healthcare System

—-- Prime Health Resources

—-— Three Rivers Provider Network

-—- Galaxy Health Network

—-— First Health Network

-- Integrated Health Plan

-— Logicomp Business Solutions, Inc.

—- HealthSCOPE Benefits, Inc.

—— HealthCHOICE (Oklahoma State & Education
Employees Group Insurance Board)

F. Other

—-— Alexian Brothers Community Services
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Section B

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
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Section B: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Please answer all questions on 8 %*” x 11” white paper,
clearly typed and spaced, identified correctly and in the
correct sequence. In answering, please type the question
and the response. All exhibits and tables must be attached
to the end of the application in correct sequence
identifying the question(s) to which they refer. If a
particular question does not apply to your project,
indicate “Not Applicable (NA)” after that question.

I. Provide a brief executive summary of the project not
to exceed two pages. Topics to be included in the
executive summary are a brief description of proposed
services and equipment, ownership structure, service
area, need, existing resources, project cost, funding,
financial feasibility and staffing.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health, will be the region’s
safety net provider for adults and children. Erlanger
Behavioral Health seeks approval to construct and initiate
inpatient psychiatric services in a new, state of the art,
psychiatric hospital. This project represents Erlanger
Health Systems’ effort to enhance its system of care to
meet the needs of the vulnerable population’s in the four
(4) state geography of the defined service area.

Disparity in mental health status and mental health
care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”1t It should also be noted that in
Tennessee, in 2015 the number of poor mental health days

1 Health Care Reform — Disparities In Mental Health Status & Mental Health Care, American
Psychological Association website ... http://www.apa.org/about/gt/issues/health-
care/disparities.aspx.
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index ranked at 4.8, the worst of every health index
measure.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve adult (24 beds),
geriatric (24 beds), and children / adolescent (18 beds)
psychiatric patients, and will also provide adult chemical
dependency services (22 beds). Services will include acute
inpatient care, partial hospitalization and outpatient
care. Further, service will also be provided with a crisis
assessment and intake center for patients on an emergency
basis, as needed. Behavioral medicine will also be
provided to those in need who are affected by various
medical conditions.

Proposed Services & Equipment
Erlanger Behavioral Health seeks approval to construct
a new state of the art, acute care psychiatric
hospital, as well as initiate psychiatric services.

Ownership Structure
Erlanger Behavioral Health will be initially owned by
Erlanger Health System. It is anticipated that
the facility will become a joint ownership arrangement
between Erlanger Health System and Acadia Healthcare.

Acadia Healthcare is the largest provider of
behavioral healthcare services. Acadia operates a
network of 585 behavioral healthcare facilities with
approximately 17,100 beds in 39 states, the United
Kingdom and Puerto Rico. Acadia provides behavioral
health and addiction services to its patients in a
variety of settings, including inpatient psychiatric
hospitals, residential treatment centers, outpatient
clinics and therapeutic school-based programs.

Acadia already operates an outpatient methadone
treatment clinic in Chattanooga.

Service Area
The service area for this project i1s defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and the counties that
surround Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia,
Alabama and North Carolina. The service area consists
of a total of thirty (30) contiguous counties in the
four (4) state geography, which is the same service
area currently served by Erlanger Medical Center. A
complete list of the counties which comprise the
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service area is attached to this CON application.

Need
The need for this project is clearly demonstrated by a
broad based analysis of the service area. In short,
the defined service area is in need of an additional
219 inpatient psychiatric beds, based on the current
Psychiatric bed need criteria.

Further, in the twelve (12) month period from Oct. 1,
2014 - Sep. 30, 2015, EHS had a total of 34,853
inpatient discharges, and of that there were 11,561
discharges with a mental health condition that needed
to be treated. Of the 11,561 inpatient discharges
with a mental condition, 6,468 of those patients were
admitted as inpatients through the Emergency Dept.

In short, there is a critical need for additional
inpatient psychiatric beds from both a community
need perspective, as well as an institutional need
perspective.

Existing Resources
There are currently a total of five (5) provider
organizations delivering inpatient psychiatric and
substance abuse / chemical dependency services at a
total of seven (7) locations within the defined
service area, for a total of 252 licensed inpatient
beds.

Project Cost
The project cost (per HSDA rules) is $ 25,112,600.

Funding
Funding for this project will be provided by Acadia
Healthcare.

Financial Feasibility
The Projected Data Chart shows a positive financial
result in year 2 for the project, year 1 includes the
start-up cost and twelve (12) months of expense, but
only ten (10) months of revenue. The first two (2)
months of year 1 are planned for staff training and
facility setup, along with other start-up activities.

Staffing
Staffing for the project in year 2 is estimated to be
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100.9 FTE's.

II. Provide a detailed narrative of the project by
addressing the following items as they relate to the
proposal.

A. Describe the construction, modification and / or

renovation to the facility (exclusive of major
medical equipment covered by T.C.A. section
68-11~1601 et seqg.) including square footage,
major operational areas, room configuration, etc.
Applicants with hospital projects (construction
cost in excess of $§ 5 million) and other facility
projects (construction cost in excess of

$ 2 million) should complete the Square Footage
And Cost Per Square Foot Chart. Utilizing the
attached Chart, applicants with hospital projects
should complete Parts A.-E. by identifying as
applicable nursing units, ancillary areas, and
support areas affected by this project. Provide
the location of the unit/service within the
existing facility along with current square
footage, where, if any, the unit/service will
relocate temporarily during construction and
renovation, and then the location of the
unit/service with proposed square footage. The
total cost per square foot should provide a
breakout between new construction and renovation
cost per square foot. Other facility projects
need only complete Part B.-E. Please also
discuss and justify the cost per square foot for
this project.

If the project involves none of the above
describe the development of the proposal.

Response

This project calls for the construction of a new
eighty-eight (88) bed inpatient hospital providing services
for both psychiatric and substance abuse / chemical
dependency. Erlanger Health System is currently in
discussions with it’s academic partner, the University of
Tennessee — College of Medicine, about making the new
hospital an academic medical center like Erlanger where a
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graduate medical education and training residency program
in Psychiatry would be established.

The bed complement for Erlanger Behavioral Health will
be twenty-four (24) Adult Psychiatric, twenty-four (24)
Geriatric Psychiatric, eighteen (18) Child/Adolescent
Psychiatric and twenty-two (22) Adult Chemical Dependency
beds. The detail calculations are attached to this CON
application.

The new facility will be 69,000 SF with construction
cost of $ 18,720,000 and total cost of $ 25,112,600.

B. Identify the number of beds increased, decreased,
converted, relocated, designated, and/or
distributed by this application. Describe the
reasons for change in bed allocations and
describe the impact the bed change will have on
the existing services.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health seeks to add seventy-six
(76) new psychiatric beds to the service area. Erlanger
North Hospital will transfer it’s current complement of
twelve (12) licensed geriatric psychiatric beds to Erlanger
Behavioral Health with approval and implementation of this
CON application. This will be a total of eighty-eight (88)
beds for the new hospital.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have a bed mix of
twenty-four (24) Adult Psychiatric, twenty-four (24)
Geriatric Psychiatric, eighteen (18) Child/Adolescent
Psychiatric and twenty-two (22) Adult Chemical Dependency
beds.

In the twelve (12) month period from Oct. 1, 2014 -
Sep. 30, 2015, EHS had a total of 34,853 inpatient
discharges, and of that there were 11,561 discharges with a
mental health condition that needed to be treated.
Further, of the 11,561 discharges with a mental condition,
6,468 of those patients were admitted through the Emergency
Department. As the 7th largest public health system in the
nation, and the healthcare safety net for the region,
Erlanger Health System 1s already the defacto provider of
behavioral health services for those in need, serving those
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who are unable to access care elsewhere. Patients with
cancer, cardiac or other complex medical conditions will
benefit greatly from the provision of behavioral medicine
provided on an outpatient basis. Having a “system of care”
available to meet the needs of area residents is paramount
to foster access as well as coordinate population health.

Further, disparity in mental health status and mental
health care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”.

The impact of the proposed project on existing
services is expected to be negligible in light of the
significant need identified, which strongly suggests a
tremendous unmet need among those who are most vulnerable,
those with TennCare/Medicaid coverage as well the
uninsured.

The need for additional behavioral health services to
serve the region has been evident at Erlanger Health System
for some time, and the need for this project is clearly
demonstrated by a detailed analysis of the service area.
The defined service area i1s in need of an additional 219
inpatient psychiatric beds, based on the current bed need
criteria.

The bed need calculation is derived from the current
standard of thirty (30) beds per 100,000 population in the
defined service area, less the current bed supply, to
arrive at the “net need” for new psychiatric beds in the
service area. The 2016 total population is 1,571,392;
therefore, the bed requirement is 471 (15.71 x 30), less
the current bed supply of 252, yielding a net need for new
inpatient psychiatric beds of 219. The need will increase
with population growth and other factors in the future.
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Square Footage & Cost Per Square Foot Chart

The Square Footage & Cost Per Square Foot Chart is
attached to this CON application.

C. As the applicant, describe your need to provide
the following healthcare services (if applicable
to this application):

1: Adult Psychiatric Services #* See Below.
2. Alcohol and Drug Treatment for

Adolescents (exceeding 28 days) N/A
3. Birthing Center N/A
4. Burn Units N/A
5. Cardiac Catheterization Services N/A
6. Child/Adolescent Psych. Services ** See Below.
7. Extracorporeal Lithotripsy N/A
8. Home Health Services N/A
9. Hospice Services N/A
10. Residential Hospice N/A
11. ICF/MR Services N/A
12. Long-Term Care Services N/A
13. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) N/A
14. Mental Health Residential Treatment N/A
15. ©Neonatal Intensive Care Unit N/A
16. Non-Residential Methadone Treatment Centers N/A
17. Open Heart Surgery N/A
18. Positron Emission Tomography N/A
19. Radiation Therapy/Linear Accelerator N/A
20. Rehabilitation Services N/A
21. Swing Beds N/A

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health seeks to add seventy-six
(76) new beds to the service area. Erlanger North Hospital
will transfer it’s current complement of twelve (12)
licensed geriatric psychiatric beds to Erlanger Behavioral
Health with approval and implementation of this CON
application. This will be a total of eighty-eight (88)
beds in the new hospital.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have a bed mix of
twenty-four (24) Adult Psychiatric, twenty-four (24)
Geriatric Psychiatric, eighteen (18) Child/Adolescent
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Psychiatric and twenty-two (22) Adult Chemical Dependency
beds.

In the twelve (12) month period from Oct. 1, 2014 -
Sep. 30, 2015, EHS had a total of 34,853 inpatient
discharges, and of that there were 11,561 discharges with a
mental health condition that needed to be treated.
Further, of the 11,561 discharges with a mental condition,
6,468 of those patients were admitted through the Emergency
Department. As the 7th largest public health system in the
nation, and the healthcare safety net for the region,
Erlanger Health System 1s already the defacto provider of
behavioral health services for those in need, serving those
who are unable to access care elsewhere. Also, patients
with cancer, cardiac or other complex medical conditions
will benefit greatly from the provision of behavioral
medicine provided on an outpatient basis. Having a “system
of care” available to meet the needs of area residents 1is
paramount.

Disparity in mental health status and mental health
care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”

The impact of the proposed project on existing
services should be negligible in light of the significant
need identified, which strongly suggests a tremendous unmet
need among those who are most vulnerable, those with
TennCare/Medicaid coverage as well the uninsured.

The need for additional behavioral health services to
serve the region has been evident at Erlanger Health System
for some time, and the need for this project is clearly
demonstrated by a detailed analysis of the service area.
The defined service area 1s in need of an additional 219
inpatient psychiatric beds, based on the current bed need
criteria.
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The bed need calculation is derived from the current
standard of thirty (30) beds per 100,000 population in the
defined service area, less the current bed supply, to
arrive at the “net need” for new beds in the service area.
The 2016 total population is 1,571,392; therefore, the bed
requirement is 471 (15.71 x 30), less the current bed
supply of 252, yielding a net need for new inpatient
psychiatric beds of 219. This need will increase with
population growth in the future.

D. Describe the need to change location or replace
an existing facility.

Response

** Not Applicable. **

E. Describe the acquisition of any item of major
medical equipment (as defined by the Agency Rules
and the Statute) which exceeds a cost of $ 2.0
million; and/or is a magnetic resonance imaging
(MRI) scanner, positron emission tomography (PET)
scanner, extracorporeal lithotripter and/or
linear accelerator by responding to the
following:

1a For fixed site major medical equipment (not
replacing existing equipment) .

a. Describe the new equipment, including:
1. Total Cost (as defined by Agency Rule).
23 Expected useful life.
3 List of clinical applications to
be provided.
4. Documentation of FDA approval.
Response

** Not Applicable. **

b. Provide current and proposed schedules
of operations.
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Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health, as an inpatient
acute psychiatric hospital will operate 24 hours per day,
365 days per year, along with a crisis assessment and
intake center. OQutpatient services will be provided Monday
- Friday, 8 a.m. — 5 p.m.

2. For mobile major medical equipment:

a. List all sites that will be served.

b. Provide current and proposed schedules
of operations.

C3 Provide the lease or contract cost.

d. Provide the fair market wvalue of the
equipment.

e. List the owner for the equipment.

Response

** Not Applicable. **

B Indicate applicant’s legal interest in
equipment (i.e.-purchase, lease, etc.).
In the case of equipment purchase include
a quote and/or proposal from an equipment
vendor, or in the case of equipment lease
provide a draft lease or contract that at
least includes the term of the lease and
the anticipated lease payments.

Response
Applicant currently has legal control of the

proposed site through an Option To Purchase, a copy is
attached to this CON application.

IIT. (A) Attach a copy of the plot plan of the site on an
8 3" x 11” sheet of white paper which must
include:

1. Size of site (in acres).

Erlanger Behavioral Health
CON Application -- Page 20 03/14/16 2:11 PM



—-— The Erlanger Behavioral Health campus 1s
located on approximately 6.0 acres.
A copy of the plot plan is attached
to this CON application.

2. Location of structure on the site.

-— Please see the location of the
facility on the site plan attached
to this CON application.

3. Location of the proposed construction.

—— A Site Located At The Intersection Of
North Holtzclaw Avenue & Citico Avenue.

4. Names of streets, roads or highways that
cross or border the site.

—— Roads that border the site are
N. Holtzclaw Avenue and Citico Avenue.

Please note that the drawings do not need to
be drawn to scale. Plot plans are required
for all projects.

(B) 1. Describe the relationship of the site to
public transportation routes, if any, and to
any highway or major road developments in
the area. Describe the accessibility of the
proposed site to patients/clients.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will be easily
accessible to patients in Chattanooga, as well as Hamilton
and surrounding counties in the service area. The new
hospital can be easily accessed via public transportation.
Proximal state and interstate highways provide easy access
from Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and North Carolina.

The distance from Erlanger Medical Center to
Erlanger Behavioral Health is 1.1 miles, with a drive time
of 2 minutes, is evidenced by the map below. Public
transportation is easily accessible to the proposed
location. Further, U.S. Highway 27 and U.S. Interstate 24
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are major roads in downtown Chattanooga and are within 2.5
miles of the proposed location.

&

- 3
2
-
&

s @ * Y -
Cru’. Hozpiuatat %, e 3 3 )
3 % st & i
¢ Erlanger Citlgo Minl-
+ Baroness ¥ ‘Mnrﬁ

Eoy S
P

IV. Attach a floor plan drawing which includes legible
labeling of patient care rooms (noting private or
semi-private), ancillary areas, equipment areas, etc.,
on an 8 *%” x 11” sheet of white paper.

NOTE: DO NOT SUBMIT BLUEPRINTS. Simple line drawings
should be submitted and need not be drawn to
scale.

Response

A copy of the floor plan is attached to this CON

application.
V. For a Home Health Agency or Hospice, identify:
A. Existing service area by County.
B. Proposed service area by County.
C. A parent or primary service provider.
D= Existing branches.
E. Proposed branches.

Response

** Not applicable. **
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Section C

GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED
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Section C: GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-

1609 (b), “no Certificate of Need shall be granted unless
the action proposed is necessary to provide needed health
care in the area to be served, can be economically
accomplished and maintained, and will contribute to the
orderly development of health care.” The three (3)
criteria are further defined in Agency Rule 0720-4-.01.
Further standards for guidance are provided in the state
health plan (Guidelines For Growth), developed pursuant to
Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1625.

The following questions are listed according to the three
(3) criteria: (1) Need, (2) Economic Feasibility, and (3)
Contribution to the Orderly Development of Healthcare.
Please respond to each question and provide underlying
assumptions, data sources, and methodologies when
appropriate. Please type each guestion and its response on
8 7 x 11”7 white paper. All exhibits and tables must be
attached to the end of the application in correct sequence
identifying the questions to which they refer. If a
guestion does not apply to your project, indicate “Not
Applicable (NA)”.

PRINCIPLES OF TENNESSEE STATE HEALTH PLAN

[ From 2011 Update, Pages 5-13 ]

1. Healthy Lives: The purpose of the State Health
Plan is to improve the health of Tennesseans.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will be a separately
licensed affiliate of Erlanger Health System, and will
share in the safety net mission in southeast Tennessee;
though the hospital will also serve northwest Georgia,
northeast Alabama and southwest North Carolina due to it’s
location and the scope and range of services provided.
Erlanger is often the only health system which low-income
people, minorities, and other underserved populations can
turn to for treatment.
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Disparity in mental health status and mental health
care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”

In order to assure the continued viability of its
mission as a safety net hospital, Erlanger continually
strives to provide services that are the most medically
appropriate, least intensive, and provided in the most
cost-effective health care setting.

As the safety net provider, a large underserved
population depends on Erlanger to provide needed services.
While it is difficult to predict the outcome of health
reform initiatives, many Tennesseans previously without
health insurance can be expected to elect services which
may have otherwise been postponed. Surveys of the
Chattanooga region have shown that some 70% or more of area
physicians and surgeons received their training at Erlanger
via its affiliation with the UT College of Medicine which
is located on campus. Based on current residency and
fellowship programs, it can be expected that this trend
will continue with many physicians opting to remain in
Tennessee, at Erlanger.

The proposed facility for Erlanger Behavioral Health
is consistent with the State Health Plan because it seeks
to ensure patient access to appropriate facilities for
Tennesseans 1in particular. Erlanger 1s the safety net for
underserved residents in southeast Tennessee, including the
only Children’s Hospital within 100 miles of Chattanooga,
Tennessee. Providing enhanced access for those in need of
care care regardless of the patients’ ability to pay has
been demonstrated to improve the health status of those
served.

The Chattanooga region, particularly Enterprise South
Industrial Park, has proven attractive to business
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development due to the relatively low cost of labor, cost
of living and absence of personal income tax. Also,
Chattanooga has been recognized as one of the tenth lowest
cost markets from a health care insurance perspective since
the roll out of the Affordable Care Act and the insurance
exchange marketplace.

Volkswagen recently announced that it will invest $600
million in its Chattanocoga manufacturing plant, adding a
second automobile line to its production facility. In
doing so, Volkswagen expects to employ an additional 2,000
employees, with the goal to have the second production line
up and running in 2016. Erlanger has a primary care site
on the Volkswagen campus that serves employees and their
families as well as others in the community. Volkswagen
also has preferred employer status with Erlanger, whereby
employees receive a discount when services are provided.
With this expansion, parts, paint and other suppliers
involved with the manufacturing are also expected to add
employees. Volkswagen has released an additional 300 acres
of property to house as many as twenty additional supply
companies, increasing site employment to 7,500.

Plastic Omnium Auto Exteriors, LLC, a tier one
supplier for Volkswagen, also recently announced that it
will make a $65 million investment in Chattanooga, creating
nearly 200 new positions at opening, with a target of 300
positions within three years. The company has purchased 27
acres in the industrial park where VW 1is located.

NV Michel Van De Wielke, one of the largest
manufacturers of textile machines in the world indicated it
would relocate to Chattanooga from Dalton, GA, to be closer
to marketplace competitors and challenge rivals for market
share. The plant will employ 35. Chattanooga is the
birthplace of tufting with a long tradition in the flooring
industry and many manufacturers are still in the region.
The company will also relocate its headquarters from
Charlotte, NC, to Chattanooga.

On the health front, area hospitals have also invested
in plant improvements and technology. Memorial Hospital
recently completed a renovation and expansion project of
approximately $ 300 million. Parkridge Health System, an
affiliate of HCA Healthcare, acquired another hospital in
the region (Grandview Hospital) and recently completed
relocation/expansion of its psychiatric facility with
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approximately $ 8 million invested. Tennova Health, in
Bradley County is owned by Community Health System,
consolidated two facilities and invested approximately $ 45
million in upgrades.

Investment in the region is expected to continue
across all industries for the foreseeable future. The
Chattanooga Area Chamber of Commerce estimates that it's
goal of adding more than 15,000 jobs by the end of 2015,
has been met.

2, Access To Care: Every citizen should have reasonable
access to care.

Response

Erlanger is designated by TennCare as the safety net
hospital, for underserved residents in southeast Tennessee.
Erlanger’s TennCare / Medicaid utilization and
uncompensated care cost for the last three (3) fiscal years
are presented below.

TennCare / Medicaid Uncompensated

Utilization % Care Cost
FY 2013 21.0 % $ 85.1 M
EFY 2014 22.3 % $ 86.2 M
FY 2015 25.0 % $ 85.1 M

Notes

(3) TennCare / Medicaid utilization percentages are based
on gross I/P charges derived from applicant’s
internal records.

(4) Uncompensated care cost estimates were derived from
applicant’s internal records as reported in the notes
to the annual audited financial statements.

(5) Erlanger’s fiscal year begins on July 1 of each year
and ends on June 30 of the following year. For
example, FY 2014 began on July 1, 2013, and ended on
June 30, 2014.

Erlanger clearly shoulders significantly more than its
proportionate share of the care rendered to vulnerable
populations. The State Health Plan favors initiatives,
like the project proposed herein, which help to foster
access to the underserved.

In a press release on January 28, 2016, U.S. Senator
Lamar Alexander said that public legislative hearings on
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the mental health crisis in America are a “priority”. As
evidence, Sen. Alexander cited a 2014 national study by the
Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Administration
which found that 1 in 5 adults had a mental health
condition and 9.8 million adults had serious mental
illness, such as schizophrenia, bipolar disorder or
depression. Of these, nearly 60% of adults with mental
illness did not receive care in 2014. Only about half of
adolescents with a mental health condition received
treatment. Further, in a study from 2010 - 2012, nearly
21% of adults in Tennessee reported having a mental
illness.

Erlanger Medical Center has the only Level I trauma
center, the only life-flight helicopter service, and the
only children’s hospital in the region. Erlanger is also
the only provider in its service area of Level IV neonatal
care and perinatal services. Erlanger Health System is
committed to maintaining its mission of providing
healthcare services to all citizen’s regardless of ability
to pay. Such services include inpatient care, obstetrics,
surgical services, as well as emergency and outpatient
services. A clear need exists to add behavioral halth to
this complement of services.

Erlanger Health System alsoc operates several other
hospitals in Southeast Tennessee, as well as a network of
physician offices and Federally Qualified Health Centers
(hereinafter “FQHC”), so that patients may easily access
needed services while also facilitating easy access to the
broader healthcare delivery system.

3. Economic Efficiencies: The State’s health care
resources should be developed to address the needs of
Tennesseans while encouraging competitive markets,
economic efficiencies, and the continued development
of the state’s health care system.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health is a new project,
therefore, it does not have historical financial data upon
which to base a comparative evaluation of it’s services
with other providers of inpatient psychiatric services.
However, below is a table of other Hamilton County,
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Tennessee, providers of acute psychiatric services in the
service area.

Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital Per I/P Admission
Parkridge Valley—-Adult Hospital $ 11,096
Parkridge Valley-Child/Adolescent

Hospital $ 8,835
Erlanger North Hospital $ 10,593

Notes
(1) Information derived from Tennessee Joint Annual Reports
for CY 2014.

Also, the net revenue per admission for Erlanger Behavioral
Health, indicated by the Projected Data Chart, is as
follows:

Year 1 Year 2
Admissions 1,071 2,128
Net Operating Revenue $ 4,670,977 $ 10,951,810
Net Revenue Per Admission $ 4,361 S 5,146

Comparative information for Erlanger Medical Center
and other providers is below. The inpatient net revenue
per admission for local providers in Chattanooga,
Tennessee, is as follows.

Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital Per I/P Admission

Erlanger Medical Center $ 11,431

Memorial Hospital $ 11,924

Parkridge Medical Center $ 13,565

Erlanger East Hospital $ 6,019

Memorial Hospital - Hixson $ 5,671

Parkridge East Hospital $ 7,709

Notes

(1) Information derived from Tennessee Joint Annual

Reports for CY 2014.

The net revenue per admission for another CON approved
project by the Health Services & Development Agency, 1s as
follows:

Avg. Net Revenue
Hospital CON No. Per I/P Admission
Crestwyn Behavioral Health CN1310-040 $ 6,785

Evidence of Erlanger’s role as a low cost provider is
illustrated with the initiation of the Health Care
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Exchanges on January 1, 2014; Blue Network E enrolled over
10,000 uninsured and Erlanger is the only provider in this
network. Further, an additional 7,000 people were enrolled
in Blue Network S and Erlanger is one of only two providers
in this network as well. It is anticipated that these
additional health networks will generate sufficient volume
to keep Erlanger cost efficient.

While offering more complex services and capabilities,
Erlanger has net revenue per inpatient admission lower than
other large area hospitals. Erlanger Medical Center is
economically efficient, while incurring higher costs by
offering more complex services including the only Level I
trauma center, the only life-flight helicopter service, the
only children’s hospital, the only Level I trauma center,
the only Regional Perinatal Center, and the only Level IV
neonatal care in southeast Tennessee.:

4, Quality Of Care: Every citizen should have confidence
that the quality of health care is continually
monitored and standards are adhered to by health care
providers.

Response

Erlanger Health System, participates in periodic
submission of quality related data to the Centers For
Medicare & Medicaid Services through its Hospital Compare
program and is also accredited by The Joint Commission.
Further, Erlanger Health System has an internal program of
Medical Quality Improvement Committees which continually
monitor healthcare services to assure patients of the
quality of care provided. The quality improvement program
will include Erlanger Behavioral Health.

5. Health Care Workforce: The state should support the
development, recruitment, and retention of a
sufficient and quality health care workforce.

Response

Erlanger is an academic health system which has
established strong long term relationships with the

2 Level 1V as defined by the Tennessee Perinatal Guidelines as well as the American College of Pediatrics.
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region’s colleges, universities and clinical programs.
Erlanger provides clinical sites for internships and
rotation programs in nursing, radiology, respiratory care
and pharmacy, to name a few. A number of regional
universities offer Bachelor degree programs in nursing and
physical therapy. Locally, two year degrees are available
in many clinical allied health areas with additional
programs offering advanced technical training in
Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear Medicine and
Diagnostic Ultrasonography.

The University of Tennessee — College of Medicine 1is
co-located at Erlanger and includes training of senior
medical students on clinical rotation as well as graduate
medical education for training of residents and advanced
fellowships in various medical specialties, including
surgical specialties, as outlined below.

Residency Programs
Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Orthopedic Surgery
Pediatrics
Plastic Surgery
Surgery
Urology
Transitional Year

Fellowship Programs
Orthopedic Trauma Surgery
Surgical Critical Care
Vascular Surgery
Colon & Rectal Surgery
Emergency Medicine
Neuro-Interventional Surgery
Ultrasound
Cardiovascular Disease
Gastroenterology (under development)
Radiology (under development)
Neurology (under development)

It should be noted that Erlanger Health System is
currently in discussions with it’s academic partner, the
University of Tennessee — College of Medicine, to explore
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the possibility of a graduate medical education and
training residency program in Psychiatry.

Further, Erlanger Health System also participates with
numerous schools that provide advanced training in the
areas of nursing and allied health.

[ End Of Responses To Principles Of Tennessee State Health Plan - 2011
Update, pages 5 - 13 ]

PSYCHIATRIC INPATIENT SERVICES

[ Standards & Criteria, Effective — 2000, p. 25-26 ]

A. Need

1. The population-based estimate of the total need
for psychiatric inpatient services is 30 beds per
100,000 general population (using population
estimates prepared by the Department of health
and applying the data in Joint Annual Reports).

Response

The need for additional behavioral health
services to serve the region has been evident at Erlanger
Health System for some time, and the need for this project
is clearly demonstrated by a detailed analysis of the
service area. The defined service area is in need of an
additional 219 inpatient psychiatric beds, based on the
current bed need criteria.

Further, in the twelve (12) month period from
Oct. 1, 2014 - Sep. 30, 2015, EHS had a total of 34,853
inpatient discharges, and of that there were 11,561
discharges with a mental health condition that needed to be
treated. Further, of the 11,561 discharges with a mental
condition, 6,468 of those patients were admitted through
the Emergency Department. As such, Erlanger’s emergency
departments already provide mental health services to
emergency patients with psychiatrists and clinical social
workers.
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As the 7th largest public health system in the
nation, and the healthcare safety net for the region,
Erlanger Health System is already the defacto provider of
behavioral health services for those in need, serving those
who are unable to access care elsewhere. Also, patients
with cancer, cardiac or other complex medical conditions
will benefit greatly from the provision of behavioral
medicine provided on an outpatient basis. Having a “system
of care” available to meet the needs of area residents is
paramount.

The bed need calculation is derived from the
current standard of thirty (30) beds per 100,000 population
in the defined service area, less the current bed supply,
to arrive at the “net need” for new beds in the service
area. The 2016 total population is 1,571,392; therefore,
the bed requirement is 471 (15.71 x 30), less the current
bed supply of 252, yielding a net need for new inpatient
psychiatric beds of 219.
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Psychiatric Beds - Gurrent Supply -- Primary, Secondary & Tertiary Service Areas

== Total Psych / Substance Beds For Service Area ==

Total Child & Adult Substance

Psych / SA Youth Psych  Geriatric  Abuse Total

Beds Beds Beds Beds Beds Beds

Parkridge Valley Hospital - Chattanooga, TN 172 108 32 16 16 172
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattanooga, TN 12 12 12
Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN 20 20 20
Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN 29 29 29
Southern Tenn Med Ctr - Winchester, TN 12 12 12
Hamilton Medical Center - Dalton, GA 7 7 7

Total 252 108 100 28 16 252

(*) Bed data obtained from 2014 Tennessee Joint Annual Reports
Certificate Of Need applications, and other data sources.

==== Pop. Est. 2016 ==== == Pop. Est. 2021 ===

Tenn. Non-Tenn. Tenn. Non-Tenn.
Child (Age 0-14) 172,951 111,190 171,916 105,829
Adolescent (Age 15-17) 36,625 23,949 41,512 28,485
Adult (Age 18-64) 593,364 345,781 595,768 342,686
Geriatric (Age 65+) 189,726 97,806 219,645 111,282
992,666 578,726 1,028,841 588,282

Total Est. Psychiatric Bed Need - 2016 471
Total Est. Psychiatric Bed Need - 2021 485

Est. Current Est. Proposed
Reguirement Supply Need Bed Mix
Child / Adolescent Beds - Est. Need - 2016 103 108 -5 18
Adult Beds - Est. Need - 2016 282 116 166 46
Geriatric Beds - Est. Need - 2016 86 28 58 24
Total 471 252 219 88

(**) Substance Abuse hospital beds included in Psychiatric beds.

Please note that Moccasin Bend Mental Health
Institute (“MBMHI”) with 150 psychiatric beds 1s not
included in the current supply shown in the need analysis,
because this facility is a State funded psychiatric
hospital and serves a totally different clientele than will
Erlanger Behavioral Health. As noted on the MBMHI website,
the mission of MBMHI is identified as:

“The mission of MBMHI is to provide quality psychiatric services
to individuals with a severe and persistent mental illness.”

Further, MBMHI has two (2) units which are reserved for
treatment of long-term care mental health patients, which
is significantly different than the focus for Erlanger
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Behavioral Health. Because MBMHI treats those who are
severely and persistently mentally 111, it is not expected
that this project will impact it’s services as that target
patient population is

There are currently a total of five (5) provider
organizations delivering inpatient psychiatric and
substance abuse/chemical dependency services at a total of
seven (7) locations within the defined service area, for a
total of 252 licensed inpatient beds.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have a bed mix of
twenty-four (24) Adult Psychiatric, twenty-four (24)
Geriatric Psychiatric, eighteen (18) Child/Adolescent
Psychiatric and twenty-two (22) Adult Chemical Dependency
beds.

Erlanger Behavioral Health seeks to add seventy-
six (76) new beds to the service area. Erlanger North
Hospital will transfer it’s current complement of twelve
(12) licensed geriatric psychiatric beds to Erlanger
Behavioral Health with approval and implementation of this
CON application. This will be a total of eighty-eight (88)
beds.

In a press release on January 28, 2016, U.S.
Senator Lamar Alexander said that public legislative
hearings on the mental health crisis in America are a
“priority”. As evidence, Sen. Alexander cited a 2014
national study by the Substance Abuse & Mental Health
Services Administration which found that 1 in 5 adults had
a mental health condition and 9.8 million adults had
serious mental illness, such as schizophrenia, bipolar
disorder or depression. Of these, nearly 60% of adults
with mental illness did not receive care in 2014. Only
about half of adolescents with a mental health condition
received treatment. Further, in a study from 2010 - 2012,
nearly 21% of adults in Tennessee reported having a mental
illness.

In short, there is a critical need for additional
inpatient psychiatric beds from the community need
perspective, as well as Erlanger’s institutional need
perspective.

2. For adult programs, the age group of 18 years
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and older should be used in calculating the
estimated total number of beds needed.

Response

As illustrated by the need information presented
in item A-1, the bed need for adults is calculated based on
the age group 18-64 years, and the geriatric need is
calculated based on the age group over 65. Based on this
methodology, the service area has a demonstrated need for
adults of 166 additional beds, and the demonstrated need
for geriatric is an additional 58 beds.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have a bed mix of
twenty-four (24) Adult Psychiatric, twenty-four (24)
Geriatric Psychiatric, eighteen (18) Child/Adolescent
Psychiatric and twenty-two (22) Adult Chemical Dependency
beds.

3. For child inpatient under age 13, and if
adolescent program the age group of 13-17 should
be used.

Response

As illustrated by the need information presented
in item A-1, the bed need for child/adolescents is
calculated based on the age group 0-17 years.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have a bed mix of
eighteen (18) child/adolescent beds.

4. These estimates for total need should be adjusted
by the existing staffed-beds operating in the
area as counted by the Department of Health in
the Joint Annual Report.

Response

As illustrated by the need information presented
in item A-1, the bed need has been adjusted by the existing
staffed beds operating in the service area, as reported in
the 2014 Tennessee Joint Annual Reports for hospitals.
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B. Service Area

1. The geographic service area should be reasonable
and based on an optimal balance between
population density and service proximity or the
Community Service Agency.

Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and the counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and North
Carolina. The service area consists of a total of thirty
(30) contiguous counties in the four (4) state geography.
A complete list of the counties which comprise the service
area 1s attached to this CON application.

This geography represents the primary, secondary
and tertiary service areas for Erlanger Medical Center. As
such, the service area is reasonable and provides optimal
balance between population density and service proximity.

2. The relationship of the socio-demographics of the
service area, and the projected population to
receive services, should be considered. The
proposal’s sensitivity to, and responsiveness to
the special needs of the service area should be
considered including accessibility to consumers,
particularly women, racial and ethnic minorities,
low income groups, and those needing services
involuntarily.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve adolescents
and adults of all ages without discrimination, and also
without regard to gender, ethnicity or ability to pay for
services.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve all
patients in need of psychiatric and substance abuse
services regardless of ability to pay. Further, patients
with TennCare/Medicaid coverage will be admitted and
served, as will charity patients.
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Erlanger Behavioral Health will accept
involuntary admissions from the judicial system regardless
of ability to pay.

C. Relationship To Existing Applicable Plans

1. The proposal’s relationship to policy as
formulated in state, city, county, and/or
regional plans and other documents should be a
significant consideration.

Response

The Tennessee Guildelines For Growth, which have
already been addressed, identify several factors pertaining
to this CON application. The Guidelines support delivery
of services in the most medically appropriate setting,
which goal this CON application serves. The Guidelines
support those CON applications which provide services to
the elderly, which goal this CON application serves. The
Guidelines indicate that preference will be given to
patient accessibility and availability, which goal this CON
application serves.

According to the Tennessee State Health Plan
“mental health problems are more prevalent in Tennessee
than the national average”, while “the prevalence of mental
health problems and illnesses is often underestimated” ..
but “despite improvements in our understanding of mental
health problems and illnesses often do not get treatment”.3
This CON application seeks to serve this significant need.

2. The proposal’s relationship to underserved
geographic areas as identified in state, city,
county and/or regional plans and other documents
should be a significant consideration.

Response

The extensive service area extends from
Chattanooga across rural parts of four (4) States, and
includes numerous counties which are designated by the
Health Resources & Services Administration as Medically

3 Tennessee State Health Plan, November, 2009, page 25.
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Underserved Areas (“MUA’s”). The medically underserved
area includes Chattanooga and Hamilton County, Tennessee.
Further, every county in the defined service area is
classified as a Health Professional Shortage Area (“HPSA")
for mental health, and this also includes Chattanooga and
Hamilton County, Tennessee.

3; The impact of the proposal on similar services
supported by state appropriations should be
assessed and considered.

Response

It is noted that Moccasin Bend Mental Health
Institute (“MBMHI”) is a State funded psychiatric hospital
in Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee. However, this
project is not expected to have any impact on MBMHI due to
the nature of the patients which this provider accepts.
From the website, the mission of MBMHI is identified as:

“The mission of MBMHI is to provide quality psychiatric services
to individuals with a severe and persistent mental illness.”

Also, MBMHI’s service area i1s also much broader than the
service area proposed. The MBMHI service area is 52
counties which serves all of East Tennessee extending North
to the Kentucky and Virginia state lines.

MBMHI has a total of 150 acute psychiatric beds,
which includes two (2) long term care units. Further,
MBMHI identifies it’s service area as fifty-two (52)
counties in East Tennessee, this includes thirty-four (34)
counties in Tennessee that are not in the service area for
Erlanger Behavioral Health. Because MBMHI treats those who
are severely mentally ill, it is not expected that this
project will impact it’s services.

4, The proposal’s relationship to whether or not the
facility takes voluntary and/or involuntary
admissions, and whether the facility serves acute
and/or long-term patients, should be assessed and
considered.

Response
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As stated in response to item B-2, Erlanger
Behavioral Health will accept voluntary patients, as well
as involuntary patients from the judicial system. Acute
mental health patients will be served at this facility, not
long-term patients on a residential basis.

5. The degree of projected financial participation
in the Medicare and TennCare programs should be
considered.

Response

As stated in response to item B-2, Erlanger
Behavioral Health will participate in both the Medicare and
TennCare programs.

D. Relationship To Existing Similar Services In The Area

1. The area’s trends in occupancy and utilization of
similar services should be considered.

Response

The utilization trend for psychiatric and
substance abuse beds is presented below. Utilization for
CY 2014 suggests that not all populations including special
needs, are receiving these necessary services.
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Parkridge Valley Adult - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanooga, TN
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattanooga, TN
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN

Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN
Southern Tenn Med Ctr - Winchester, TN

Hamilton Medical Center - Dalton, GA

Total

Parkridge Valley Adult - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanaoga, TN
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattanooga, TN
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN

Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN
Southern Tenn Med Ctr - Winchester, TN

Hamilton Medical Center - Dalton, GA

Total

Parkridge Valley Adult - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanooga, TN
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattanooga, TN
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattanooga, TN

Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN

Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN
Southern Tenn Med Ctr - Winchester, TN

chiatri

Total
Psych / SA
Beds

64
108
11
12
20
29
12

7

263

NOTES

Beds - Utilizati

Annual Pt.
Days
Available

23,360
39,420
4,015
4,380
7,300
10,585
4,380

93,440

========= Actual Discharges =========

Tre
201 2013
2,070 T
1,211 3,004
262 281
497 465
840 928
170 86
5,050 4,764
======= Actual Patient Days
201 2013
12,420 -
30,203 44,968
3,628 3,761
4,930 5,055
2,203 1,038

4,170 3,916

57,554 58,738

2012

3,073
258
268
473
959
135

5,166

2012

39,153
2,793
3,746
5,278
1,362
4,421

56,753

========= Occupancy Rate

014 2013

53.2% =
76.6% 14.1%

82.8% 85.9%
67.5% 69.2%
20.8% 9.8%
95.2% 89.4%

2012

99.3%
69.6%
85.5%
72.3%
12.9%
100.9%

(1) Utilization data obtained from Tennessee Joint Annual Reports .
(2) Parkridge Valley moved it's Adult & Geriatric beds to a new campus in 2014,
(3) Utilization data not available for Hamilton Medical Center in Dalton, Georgia.

843
146

3,692
1,527
1,567
4,448

99.0%
76.1%
84.3%
20.9%
14.8%
101.6%

Nationally, utilization of Psychiatric services is
expected to increase over the next ten
2015 and 2025, with overall growth for inpatient service at
a rate of 5% and overall growth for outpatient service at a
rate of 19%. Sg2, a national healthcare consultancy firm,
provides the following detail by growth factor:

Factor
Population
Epidemiology
Economy
Policy
Innovation & Tech.
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System Of Care ~2

oo
Iy
ae

Total 5

oe
Ja
O

o

Notes
(1) Information obtained from Sg2, 2015 Behavioral Health
Landscape — Introduction To The Forecast, p. 6.

In addition, Sg2 estimates that 68% of those with
a mental disorder also have 1 or more medical conditions.
Further, 29% of adults with a chronic condition have a
comorbid mental health disorder.

2. Accessibility to specific special need groups
should be an important factor.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve adolescents
and adults of all ages without discrimination, and also
without regard to gender, ethnicity or ability to pay for
services.

Disparity in mental health status and mental
health care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve all
patients in need of psychiatric and substance abuse
services regardless of ability to pay. Further, patients
with TennCare/Medicaid coverage will be admitted and
served, as will charity patients.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will accept
involuntary admissions from the judicial system regardless
of ability to pay.
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E. Feasibility

The ability of the applicant to meet Tennessee
Department of Mental Health licensure requirements
(related to personnel and staffing for psychiatric
inpatient facilities) should be considered.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will meet all licensure
requirements of the Tennessee Department of Mental Health
related to personnel and staffing for inpatient psychiatric
hospitals.

[ End Of Responses To Standards & Criteria For Psychiatric

Inpatient Services, 2000, page 26-26 ]

GENERAL QUESTIONS CONCERNING NEED, ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY
& CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHCARE

(I.) NEED

1. Describe the relationship of this proposal toward the
implementation of the State Health Plan, Teneessee'’s
Health: Guidelines For Growth.

(a) Please provide a response to each criterion and
standard in Certificate Of Need Categories that
are applicable to the proposed project. Do not
provide responses to General Criteria and
Standards (pages 6-9) here.

Response

This project is consistent with the Principles Of
The Tennessee State Health Plan as stated in the 2011
update (“Principles”). Applicant has addressed each of the
Principles.
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(b) Applications that include a Change of Site for a
health care institution, provide a response to
General Criterion and Standards (4) (a-c).

Response

** Not applicable. **

2. Describe the relationship of this proposal to the
applicant facility’s long range development plans,
if any.

Response

Erlanger Health System currently holds a CON for
expansion of Erlanger East Hospital (No. CN0405-047AE); and
a CON to modernize and upgrade the surgical facilities at
Erlanger Medical Center (No. CN1207-034A); a CON was
approved for Erlanger East Hospital to initiate a satellite
radiation therapy service along with the relocation of a
Linear Accelerator from Erlanger Medical Center (no.
CN1412-048); a CON application was approved to upgrade the
Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory for Erlanger East
Hospital from a diagnostic catheterization laboratory to an
interventional / therapeutic laboratory (No. CN1502-005).
Also, a CON application (No. CN1601-002) is currently
pending with the Health Services & Development Agency to
add a Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital.

The goal for Erlanger Health System is to provide a
comprehensive system of care comprised of unduplicated
services while also serving those who are currently under
served and/or those who do not have the ability to pay for
their services. As such, Erlanger Behavioral Health is
part of a long term plan to make services more accessible.

3. Identify the proposed service area and justify the
reasonableness of that proposed area. Submit a county
level map including the State of Tennessee clearly
marked to reflect the service area. Please submit
maps on 8 »%” x 11”7 sheets of white paper marked only
with ink detectable by a standard photocopier (i.e-no
highlighters, pencils, etc.).
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Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and the counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and North
Carolina. The service area consists of a total of thirty
(30) contiguous counties in the four (4) state geography.
A complete list of the counties which comprise the service
area is attached to this CON application.

This geography represents the same primary,
secondary and tertiary service areas as Erlanger Medical
Center. Therefore, the service area 1s reasonable and
provides balance between population density and service
proximity. A map showing the service area is attached to
this CON application.

4. A. Describe the demographics of the population to be
served by this proposal.

Response

The State of Tennessee has a TennCare enrollment
of 20.0%, compared to the Tennessee service area for this
project which is 21.7%. The population over age 65 is
expected to grow by 6.8% for the service area between 2016
and 2020, compared to the Tennessee growth rate of 3.2% ..
while the total population is expected to grow by only 3.0%
for the service area, compared to 3.7% for Tennessee.
Briefly stated, this illustrates that the over 65
population is growing at a faster rate than the total
population for the Tennessee service area, when compared to
the State of Tennessee.

The need for additional behavioral health services to
serve the region has been evident at Erlanger Health System
for some time, and the need for this project is clearly
demonstrated by a detailed analysis of the service area.
The defined service area is in need of an additional 219
inpatient psychiatric beds, based on the current bed need
criteria.

In the twelve (12) month period from Oct. 1, 2014 -
Sep. 30, 2015, EHS had a total of 34,853 inpatient
discharges, and of that there were 11,561 discharges with a
mental health condition that needed to be treated.
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Further, of the 11,561 discharges with a mental condition,

6,468 of those patients were admitted through
Department. As the 7th largest public health
nation, and the healthcare safety net for the
Erlanger Health System is already the defacto
behavioral health services for those in need,

the Emergency
system in the
region,
provider of
serving those

who are unable to access care elsewhere. Also, patients

with cancer, cardiac or other complex medical

conditions

will benefit greatly from the provision of behavioral
medicine provided on an outpatient basis. Having a “system
of care” available to meet the needs of area residents is

paramount.

A summary of demographic information appears
below which outlines TennCare enrollment, changes in
population, and that portion which is below the Federal
poverty level within the service area, by county compared

to the State of Tennessee.
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Hamilton Bradle Marion Grundy Sequatchie Bledsoe
Current Year (2016) - Age 65+ 61,073 17,879 5,763 3,021 3,195 2,628
Projected Year (2020 - Age 65+ 69,752 20,381 6,584 3,339 3,896 2,955
Age B5+ - % Change 14.2% 14.0% 14.2% 10.5% 21.9% 12.4%
Age 65+ - % Total 17.1% 16.9% 20.2% 22,4% 20.2% 19.8%
Total Pop. - 2016 356,156 105,549 28,585 13,470 15,835 13,273
Total Pop. - 2020 368,666 109,706 28,633 13,263 16,943 13,481
Total Pop. - % Change 3.5% 3.9% 0.2% -1.5% 7.0% 1.6%
Median Age 39 38 42 41 41 42
Median Household Income $46,702 $41,083 $41,268 $26,814 $36,434 $33,443
TennCare Enrollees 61,399 20,321 6,636 4,626 3,716 3,082
TennCare Enrollees As % Of Total Pop. 17.2% 19.3% 23.2% 34.3% 23.5% 23.2%
Persons Below Poverty Level 59,979 20,664 5,215 3,957 2,653 2,825
Persons Below Poverly Level As % Of Total Pop, 16.8% 19.6% 18.2% 29.4% 16.8% 21.3%
Rhea Meigs McMinn Polk Franklin Coffee
Current Year (2016} - Age 65+ 6,589 2,677 11,089 3,680 8,752 10,225
Projected Year (2020 - Age 65+ 7,571 3,151 12,650 4,134 9,972 11,573
Age 65+ - % Change 14.9% 17.7% 14.1% 12.3% 13.9% 13.2%
Age 65+ - % Total 19.4% 21.9% 20.4% 21.1% 20.8% 18.3%
Total Pop. - 2016 33,934 12221 54,449 17,442 42,097 55,932
Total Pop. - 2020 35216 12,462 55724 17,812 42,681 57,865
Total Pop. - % Change 3.8% 2.0% 2.3% 2.1% 1.4% 3.5%
Median Age 40 43 42 43 41 40
Median Household Income $36,741 $35150 $39,410 $39,074 $42,904 $37,618
TennCare Enrollees 8,490 2,907 11,270 3,784 7,166 12,252
TennCare Enrollees As % Of Total Pop. 25.0% 23.8% 20.7% 21.7% 17.0% 21.9%
Persons Below Poverty Level 7,631 2,553 9,786 2,867 6,250 11,457
Persons Below Poverty Level As % Of Total Pop. 22.5% 20.9% 18.0% 16.4% 14,8% 20.5%
Service State Of
Warren Van Buren Monroe Cumberland Loudon Roane Area Tennessee
Current Year (2016) - Age 65+ 7,350 1,313 10,398 19,871 15,089 12,670 203,262 1,012,937
Projected Year (2020 - Age 65+ 8,233 1,554 12,384 23,106 17,908 14,509 233,652 1,134,565
Age 85+ - % Change 12,0% 18.4% 19.1% 16.3% 18.7% 14.5% 15.0% 12.0%
Age 65+ - % Total 100.0% 100.0% @ 100.0%  33.9% 29.0% 24.2% 21.8% 15.2%
Total Pop. - 2016 7,350 1,313 10,398 58,566 51,988 52,300 930,858 6,649,438
Total Pop. - 2020 8,233 1,554 12,384 60,368 52,245 51,602 958,838 6,894,997
Total Pop. - % Change 12.0% 18.4% 19.1% 3.1% 0.5% -1.3% 3.0% 3.7%
Median Age 39 45 42 50 48 48 42 38
Median Household Income $34,641 $33,547 $37,595 $39,901 $53,815 $49,949 $45,482 $44,298
TennCare Enrollees 10,217 1,242 10,881 12,934 9,187 11,789 201,899 1,331,838
TennCare Enrollees As % Of Total Pop. 139.0% 94.6% 104.6% 22.1% 17.7% 22.5% " 21.7% 20.0%
Persons Below Poverly Level 8,742 1,222 9,126 9,721 7,070 9,414 181,132 1,170,301
Persons Below Poverty Level As % Of Total Pop. 118.9%  93.1% 87.8% 16.6% 13.6% 18.0% 19.5% 17.6%
B. The special needs of the service area population,

including health disparities,

racial and ethnic minorities,
Document how the business plans of the

groups.

the accessibility
to consumers, particularly the elderly, women,

and low-income

facility will take into consideration the special
needs of the service area population.

Response

As a member facility of Erlanger Health System,
Erlanger Behavioral Health is a component of the safety net
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for southeast Tennessee. Often the only hospital which
low—-income people, minorities, and other underserved
populations can turn to for treatment is Erlanger. In
order to assure the continued viability of its mission as
the safety net provider, Erlanger Health System continually
strives to provide services that are medically appropriate,
least intensive (restrictive), and provided in the most
cost-effective health care setting.

Disparity in mental health status and mental
health care are critical in determining the greatest need.
Specifically, “Blacks, Latino’s and Asian Americans are
over represented in populations that are particularly at
risk for mental health disorders. Additionally, minority
individuals may experience symptoms that are undiagnosed,
under-diagnosed, or mis-diagnosed for cultural, linguistic,
or historical reasons. The lack of attention to the mental
and behavioral health needs of racial and ethnic minorities
and the inadequate provision of culturally and
linguistically appropriate mental health care in racial and
ethnic minority communities demonstrates a clear need .. to
close the gap in care.”

Erlanger Behavioral Health is easily
accessible to patients in Chattanooga, as well as Hamilton
and surrounding counties in the service area. The hospital
can be easily accessed via public transportation. Proximal
state and interstate highways provide easy access from
Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and North Carolina.

The distance from Erlanger Medical Center to
Erlanger Behavioral Health is 1.1 miles, with a drive time
of 2 minutes, as evidenced by the map below. Public
transportation is easily accessible to the proposed
location. Further, U.S. Highway 27 and U.S. Interstate 24
are major roads in downtown Chattanooga and are within 2.5
miles of the proposed location.
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Erlanger has also been responsive to the needs of
employees and families of new businesses like VW, Amazon
and Wacker Chemical which have generated thousands of new
jobs in the area. The proposed project will help ensure
that the service area population have access to services
and facilities consistent with their needs and evolving
industry standards.

5. Describe the existing or certified services, including
approved but unimplemented CON’s, of similar
institutions in the service area. Include utilization

and/or occupancy trends for each of the most recent
three years of data available for this type of
project. Be certain to list each institution and its
utlilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient
bed projects must include the following data: .
admissions or discharges, patient days, and occupancy.
Other projects should use the most appropriate
measures, e.g., cases, procedures, visits, admissions,
etc.

Response

There are currently no outstanding CON’s for inpatient
psychiatric facilities in the service area. The
utilization trend for psychiatric and substance abuse beds
suggests that not all populations, including special needs,
are receliving these necessary services.
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Psychiatric B - Utilization Trend

========= Actual Discharges =========

201 2013 2012 011
Parkridge Valley Adutt - Chattancoga, TN 2,070 - - -
Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanooga, TN 1,211 3,004 3,073 3,106
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattancoga, TN - - 258 291
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattancoga, TN 262 281 268 56
Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN 497 465 473 163
Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN 840 928 959 843
Southern Tenn Med Cfr - Winchester, TN 170 86 135 146
Hamifton Medical Center - Dalton, GA
Total 5,050 4,764 5,166 4,605
Total Annual Pt.
Psych / SA Days ======= Actual Patient Days =========
Beds Available 014 2013 2012 011
Parkridge Valley Adult - Chattanooga, TN 64 23,360 12,420 - - -
Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanooga, TN 108 39,420 30,203 44,968 39,153 39,012
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattanooga, TN 11 4,015 - - 2,793 3,054
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattanooga, TN 12 4,380 3,628 3,761 3,746 3,692
Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN 20 7,300 4,930 5,055 5,278 1,527
Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN 29 10,585 2,203 1,038 1,362 1,567
Southern Tenn Med Ctr - Winchester, TN 12 4,380 4,170 3,916 4,421 4,448
Hamilton Medical Center - Dalton, GA 74
Total 263 93,440 57,554 58,738 56,753 53,300

========= Qccupancy Rate ==========

2014 2013 2012 2012

Parkridge Valley Adult - Chattanooga, TN 53.2% - - -
Parkridge Valley Child/Adolescent - Chattanooga, TN 76.6% 114.1% 99.3% 99.0%
Parkridge Medical Center - Chattancoga, TN - - 69.6% 76.1%
Erlanger North Hospital - Chattancoga, TN 82.8% 85.9% 85.5% 84.3%
Parkridge West Hospital - Jasper, TN 67.5% 69.2% 72.3% 20.9%
Skyridge Medical Center - Westside - Cleveland, TN 20.8% 9.8% 12.9% 14.8%
Southern Tenn Med Citr - Winchester, TN 95.2% 89.4% 100.9% 101.6%

NOTES

(1) Utilization data obtained from Tennessee Joint Annual Reports .
(2) Parkridge Valley moved it's Adult & Geriatric beds to a new campus in 2014.
(3) Utilization data not available for Hamilton Medical Center in Dalton, Georgia.

6. Provide applicable utilization and/or occupancy
statistics for your institution for each of the past
three (3) years and the projected annual utilization
for each of the two (2) years following completion of
the project. Additionally, provide the details
regarding the methodology used to project utilization.
The methodology must include detailed calculations or
documentation from referral sources, and
identification of all assumptions.
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Response

As a new facility, Erlanger Behavioral Health does not
have historical utilization data to report, however,
projected utilization data is presented below.

Year 1 Year 2
Admissions 1,071 2,128
Patient Days 8,798 17,481
Average Daily Census 24.1 47.9

(I1.) ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

1. Provide the cost of the project by completing the
Project Costs Chart on the following page. Justify
the cost of the project.

- All projects should have a project cost of at least
$ 3,000 on Line F (minimum CON filing fee). CON
filing fee should be calculated from Line D. (See
application instructions for filing fee.)

- The cost of any lease should be based on fair market
value or the total amount of lease payments over the
initial term of the lease, whichever is greater.

- The cost of fixed and moveable equipment includes,
but is not necessarily limited to, maintenance
agreements covering the expected useful life of the
equipment; federal, state and local taxes and other
government assessments; and installation charges,
excluding capital expenditures for physical plant
renovation or in-wall shielding, which should be
included under construction costs or incorporated in
a facility lease.

- For projects that include new construction,
modification, and/or renovation; documentation must
be provided from a contractor and/or architect that
support the estimated construction costs.

Response

The Project Cost Chart has been completed on the next
page.
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PROJECT COST CHART

A.  Construction And Equipment Acquired By Purchase.

1. Architecural And Engineering Fees 1,632,600
2. Legal, Administrative, Consultant Fees 50,000
(Excluding CON Filing Fees)

31 Acquisition Of Site 825,000
4, Preparation Of Site 1,800,000
)} Construction Costs 18,720,000
6. Contingency Fund 1,000,000
7. Fixed Equipment (Not Included In Construction Contract) 350,000
8. Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $ 50,000)

9. Other (Specify) _Dietary equipment & misc. start-up costs. 690,000

B.  Acquisition By Gift, Donation, Or Lease.

1. Facility (inclusive of building and land) 0
2, Building Only 0
3; Land Only 0
4, Equipment (Specify) 0
5: Other (Specify) 0
C. Financing Costs And Fees.
1. Interim Financing 0
2. Underwriting Costs 0
31 Reserve For One Year's Debt Service 0
4, Other (Specify) 0
D. Estimated Project Cost (A+B+C) 24,067,600
E. CON Filing Fee 45,000
F.  Total Estimated Project Cost (D+E) 25,112,600
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2. Identify the funding sources for this project.

a. Please check the applicable item(s) below and
briefly summarize how the project will be financed.
(Documentation for the type of funding MUST be
inserted at the end of the application, in the
correct alpha/numeric order and identified as
Attachment C, Economic Feasibility-2.)

A. Commercial Loan —-- Letter from lending
institution or guarantor stating favorable
initial contact, proposed loan amount, expected
interest rates, anticipated term of the loan,
and any restrictions or conditions.

By Tax - Exempt Bonds -- Copy of preliminary
resolution or a letter from the issuing authority
stating favorable initial contact and a
conditional agreement from an underwriter or
investment banker to proceed with the issuance.

C. General obligation bonds -- Copy of resolution
from issuing authority or minutes from the
appropriate meeting.

D. Grants —- Notification of intent form for grant
application or notice of grant award.

E. Cash Reserves — Appropriate documentation from
Chief Financial Officer.

X F. Other - Identify and document funding from all
other sources.

Response

The project will be funded by Acadia Healthcare. See
letter attached to this CON application.

3. Discuss and document the reasonableness of the
proposed project costs. If applicable, compare the
cost per square foot of construction to similar
projects recently approved by the Health Services And
Development Agency.
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Response

Cost per square foot for hospital construction is
shown below for HSDA approved projects from 2012 - 2014.

HSDA -- Hospital Construction Cost Per Square Foot
Approved Projects -- 2012 - 2014

Renovated
Construction

New
Construction

Total
Construction

1st Quartile $110.98/ SF $224.09/ SF $ 156.78 / SF
Median $192.46 / SF $ 259.56 / SF $ 22788/ SF
3rd Quartile $297.82/ SF $296.52 / SF $ 298.66 / SF

An analysis of the cost per square foot with similar
projects in Tennessee is below.

Cost Per

Facility CON Number Square Foot
Crestwyn Behavioral Health CN1310-040 $ 244.85
SBH-Kingsport, LLC CN1312-050 $ 153.00

The construction cost of $ 18,720,000 for this
project, along with the estimated 69,000 SF, will yield
cost estimate per SF for the Erlanger Behavioral Health
facility of $ 271.30. This cost is reasonable when
compared to the projects above, particularly when
considered in relation to time and location.

4. Complete Historical and Projected Data Charts on the
following two pages — Do not modify the Charts
provided or submit Chart substitutions ! Historical

Data Chart represents revenue and expense information
for the last three (3) years for which complete
information is available for the institution.
Projected Data Chart requests information for the two
(2) years following the completion of this proposal.
Projected Data Chart should reflect revenue and
expense projections for the Proposal Only (i.e.-if the
application is for additional beds, include
anticipated revenue from the proposed beds only, not
from all beds in the facility).

Response
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Please note that since Erlanger Behavioral Health is a
new hospital, there is no historical financial information
to report. However, we have provided the historical
financial information for Erlanger Health System. The
Historical Data Chart and Projected Data Chart have been
completed. The detail for Other Expenses on the Historical
Data Chart is attached to this CON application.
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility

or agency. The fiscal year begins in July (Month).
Year — 2013 Year — 2014 Year — 2015
A. Utilization Data 29,066 30,394 33,340
(Specify Unit Of Measure) _I/P Admits
B. Revenue From Services To Patients
1. Inpatient Services 951,407,744 1,011,698,242 1,182,962,344
2. Outpatient Services 638,832,332 723,658,840 830,030,436
3. Emergency Services 122,125,184 147,183,286 171,845,957
4 Other Operating Revenue 33,499,831 36,036,026 32,126,111

(Specify)

Home Health, POB Rent, etc.

Gross Operating Revenue

C. Deductions From Operating Revenue
Contractual Adjustments

1.

2. Provision For Charity Care

3. Provision For Bad Debt
Total Deductions

NET OPERATING REVENUE

D. Operating Expenses

OGN RO

Salaries And Wages
Physician's Salaries And Wages

Supplies
Taxes
Depreciation
Rent

Interest — Other Than Capital
Management Fees:

a. Fees To Affiliates

b. Fees To Non-Affiliates
Other Expenses

(Specify)

Insurance, Purch. Svcs., etc.

1,745,865,091

1,918,576,394

2,216,964,846

997,920,752 1,105,607,716 1,317,441,010
102,150,881 110,213,778 92,392,901
74,808,470 84,222,955 93,878,274

1,174,880,103

1,300,044 ,449

1,603,712,185

Total Operating Expenses

E. Other Revenue (Expenses) - Net

(Specify)

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

F. Capital Expenditures
1.
2.

Retirement Of Principal

Interest

Total Capital Expenditures

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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570,984,988 618,531,945 713,252,663
275,109,764 276,229,682 270,118,412
36,117,461 42,290,749 76,375,201
78,028,042 82,925,430 93,104,628
536,994 566,101 558,754
27,373,556 26,732,222 25,647,102
5,341,116 5,209,326 5,816,951

0 0 0
156,440,656 166,565,645 193,745,905
578,947,589 600,519,155 665,366,953
(7,962,601) 18,012,789 47,885,710
7,900,842 8,048,272 15,492,190
8,971,728 8,258,717 9,607,644
16,872,570 16,306,989 24,999,834
(24,835,171 1,705,800 22,885,876
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PROJECTED DATA CHART

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility

or agency. The fiscal year beginsin ___ July  (Month).
| Year 1 | [ Year 2 |
A. Utilization Data 8,798 17,481
(Specify Unit Of Measure) _Pt. Days
Revenue From Services To Patients
1. Inpatient Services 11,870,450 26,516,061
2 Outpatient Services 121,350 339,270
3. Emergency Services - -
4 Other Operating Revenue 10,000 12,000
Gross Operating Revenue 12,001,800 26,867,331
Deductions From Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments 6,727,381 15,027,536
2. Provision For Charity Care
3. Provision For Bad Debt 603,442 887,985
Total Deductions 7,330,823 15,915,521
NET OPERATING REVENUE 4,670,977 10,951,810
Operating Expenses
1. Salaries And Wages 3,432,825 6,124,604
2. Physician's Salaries And Wages 172,335 314,512
3. Supplies 319,545 483,451
4. Taxes
5. Depreciation 812,831 841,574
6. Rent 24,000 24,720
7. Interest - Other Than Capital -
8. Management Fees:
a. Fees To Affiliates
b. Fees To Non-Affiliates
9. Other Expenses 1,121,362 3,048,512
(Specify) __Semvice Contracts
Total Operating Expenses 5,882,898 10,837,373
Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net
(Specify)
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,211,921) 114,438
Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement Of Principal
2. Interest
Total Capital Expenditures
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (1,211,921 ) 114,438
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5% Please identify the project’s average gross charge,
average deduction from operating revenue, and average
net charge.

Response

Following are the average charge amounts per patient.

Average Gross Charge $ 11,2006
Average Deduction From Revenue S 6,845
Average Net Revenue $ 4,361

Average Deduction From Revenue
Medicare
TennCare / Medicaid

7,759
12,820

Ur

Average Net Revenue
Medicare s 7,759
TennCare / Medicaid S 7,422

6. A. Please provide the current and proposed charge
schedules for the proposal. Discuss any
adjustment to current charges of projects that
will result from the implementation of the
proposal. Additionally, describe the anticipated
revenue from the proposed project and the impact
on existing patient charges.

Response

A charge master file for Erlanger Behavioral
Health has not yet been developed. However, net revenue
per admission as indicated by the Projected Data Chart is
as follows:

Year 1 Year 2
Admissions 1,071 2,128
Net Operating Revenue $ 4,670,977 $ 10,951,810
Net Revenue Per Admission 4,361 $ 5,146

It is anticipated that Erlanger Behavioral Health will
revise it’s charges annually once it opens for operation.
Generally, proposed charges will be in line with other like
providers.

B. Compare the proposed charges to those of other
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facilities in the service area/adjoining service
areas, or to proposed charges of projects
recently approved by the Health Services And
Development Agency. If applicable, compare the
proposed charges of the project to the current
Medicare allowable fee schedule by common
procedure terminology (CPT) code(s).

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health does not have any
historical financial data upon which to base a comparative
evaluation of it’s services with other providers of
inpatient psychiatric services. However, below is a table
of other Hamilton County, Tennessee, providers of acute
psychiatric services in the service area.

Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital Per I/P Admission
Parkridge Valley-Adult Hospital $ 11,096
Parkridge Valley-Child/Adolescent

Hospital $ 8,835
Erlanger North Hospital $ 10,593
Notes
(1) Information derived from Tennessee Joint Annual Reports

for CY 2014.

Also, the net revenue per admission for the new hospital,
indicated by the Projected Data Chart, is as follows:

Year 1 Year 2
Admissions 1,071 2,128
Net Operating Revenue $ 4,670,977 $ 10,951,810
Net Revenue Per Admission $ 4,361 $ 5,146

The net revenue per admission for another CON approved
project by the Health Services & Development Agency, is as
follows:

Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital CON No. Per I/P Admission
Crestwyn Behavioral Health CN1310-040 $ 6,785
7. Discuss how projected utilization rates will be

sufficient to maintain cost effectiveness.

Response
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Despite the significant need demonstrated in this CON
application, Erlanger Behavioral Health has been
conservative by estimating an average daily census of 24.1
in year 1 of the project, and an average daily census of
47.9 in year 2. As the Projected Data Chart demonstrates,
a positive financial result will be achieved beginning in
year 2. As the average daily census increases over
subsequent years, the efficiency gained by higher
utilization will enable cost effectiveness to be sustained.

8. Discuss how financial viability will be ensured
within two (2) years; and demonstrate the availability
of sufficient cash flow until financial viability is
achieved.

Response

As demonstrated by the Projected Data Chart, the
project has a positive financial result beginning in year 2
of the project. Year 1 financial results reflect start-up
costs. For example, year 1 includes 10 months of revenue
but 12 months of expense for training and onboarding of new
staff members during start-up.

9. Discuss the project’s participation in state and
federal revenue programs including a description of
the extent to which Medicare, TennCare/Medicaid, and
medically indigent patients will be served by the
project. In addition, report the estimated dollar
amount of revenue and percentage of total project
revenue anticipated from each of TennCare, Medicare,
or other state and federal sources for the proposal’s
first year of operation.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health, will apply to CMS for
participation in the following Federal / State programs.

Federal Medicare
State BlueCare

TennCare Select
AmeriGroup Community Care
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Anticipated revenue (gross charges) from Federal and
State sources during year 1 of the project, is as follows.

Medicare S 3,917,249
TennCare S 3,086,317

10. Provide copies of the balance sheet and income
statement from the most recent reporting period of
the institution and the most recent audited financial
statements with accompanying notes, if applicable.
For new projects, provide financial information for
the corporation, partnership, or principal parties
involved with the project. Copies must be inserted
at the end of the application, in the correct
alpha-numeric order and labeled as Attachment C,
Economic Feasibility-10.

Response

Please note that since Erlanger Behavioral Health is a
new hospital, there is no historical financial information
to report. However, copies of the following financial
statements for Erlanger Health System are attached to this
CON application.

Interim Balance Sheet & Income Statement Dec. 30, 2015
Audited Financial Statements June 30, 2015

11. Describe all alternatives to this project which were
considered and discuss the advantages and
disadvantages of each alternative including but not
limited to,

A. A discussion regarding the availability of less
costly, more effective, and/or more efficient
alternative methods of providing the benefits
intended by the proposal. If developments of
such alternatives is not practicable, the
applicant should justify why not; including
reasons as to why they were rejected.
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Response

A number of alternatives were considered and
deemed not to be feasible. These alternatives included
locating the proposed project at Erlanger North Hospital
where a twelve (12) bed Geriatric-Psychiatric unit is
already located, however, this was not feasible due to the
topography of the site and the inability to accommodate the
proposed plan in a functionally efficient manner. Also,
cost was anticipated to be higher given the need for
extensive site improvements. We next evaluated the
Erlanger Medical Center campus, however, available land on
the main campus is expected to be utilized for construction
of a new/replacement children’s hospital and for a
children’s ambulatory care building, leaving little to no
space for the new behavioral health hospital.

Consideration was given to use of the Hamilton
County Health Department site adjacent to Erlanger Medical
Center, however, this building and services would need to
be relocated and replaced, increasing project cost.
Further, other land contiguous to the main campus is
expected to be utilized by the city for extension of
Central Avenue, connecting with Amnicola Highway. While
this location is expected to reduce travel time to
Erlanger’s trauma center, insufficient space would remain
for this project. Sites owned by the city and county were
also evaluated, and we met and discussed the proposed
project with the Chamber of Commerce and elected officials;
however, these sites are contemplated to be used for higher
density industrial development.

We also considered not developing the propocsed
project but rejected this alternative given the identified
need and number of patients currently served. In the end,
selection of a site located two minutes’ drive from the
main campus was considered the best option. The site is
flat and sufficient to accommodate the proposed project.

As the safety net hospital in Southeast
Tennessee, it is vital that Erlanger Health System enhance
its facilities to provide the best and most accessible
treatment services available for the communities we serve.
As an academic medical center affiliated with the
University of Tennessee College of Medicine, which is co-
located on the Erlanger Medical Center campus, EHS also
seeks to provide appropriate facilities so as to enhance
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the training and education of medical residents and fellows
as well as other health professionals. Erlanger Health
System is planning for tomorrow with regard to behavioral
health services for the regional service area, ensuring
that the needs of the uninsured and/or low income
population are being met.

B. The applicant should document that consideration
has been given to alternatives to new
construction, e.g., modernization or sharing
arrangements. It should be documented that
superior alternatives have been implemented to
the maximum extent practicable.

Response

A number of alternatives were considered and
deemed not to be feasible. These alternatives included
locating the proposed project at Erlanger North Hospital
where a twelve (12) bed Geriatric-Psychiatric unit is
already located, however, this was not feasible due to the
topography of the site and the inability to accommodate the
proposed plan in a functionally efficient manner. Also,
cost was anticipated to be higher given the need for
extensive site improvements. We next evaluated the
Erlanger Medical Center campus, however, available land on
the main campus is expected to be utilized for construction
of a new/replacement children’s hospital and for a
children’s ambulatory care building, leaving little to no
space for the new behavioral health hospital.

Consideration was given to use of the Hamilton
County Health Department site adjacent to Erlanger Medical
Center, however, this building and services would need to
be relocated and replaced, increasing project cost.
Further, other land contiguous to the main campus 1is
expected to be utilized by the city for extension of
Central Avenue, connecting with Amnicola Highway. While
this location is expected to reduce travel time to
Erlanger’s trauma center, insufficient space would remain
for this project. Sites owned by the city and county were
also evaluated, and we met and discussed the proposed
project with the Chamber of Commerce and elected officials;
however, these sites are contemplated to be used for higher
density industrial development.
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We also considered not developing the proposed
project but rejected this alternative given the identified
need and number of patients currently served. In the end,
selection of a site located two minutes’ drive from the
main campus was considered the best option. The site is
flat and sufficient to accommodate the proposed project.

As the safety net hospital in Southeast
Tennessee, it is vital that Erlanger Health System enhance
its facilities to provide the best and most accessible
treatment services available for the communities we serve.
As an academic medical center affiliated with the
University of Tennessee College of Medicine, which is co-
located on the Erlanger Medical Center campus, EHS also
seeks to provide appropriate facilities so as to enhance
the training and education of medical residents and fellows
as well as other health professionals. Erlanger Health
System is planning for tomorrow with regard to behavioral
health services for the regional service area, ensuring
that the needs of the uninsured and/or low income
population are being met.

(III.) CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT
OF HEALTH CARE

1. List all health care providers (e.g., hospitals,
nursing homes, home care organizations, etc.), managed
care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with
which the applicant currently has or plans to have
contractual and/or working relationships, e.g.,
transfer agreements, contractual agreements for health
services.

Response

The most significant relationship between this
proposal and the existing healthcare system is that it will
be part of an existing health system and enhance Erlanger
Health System’s ability to integrate its services within
the regional service area as the safety net provider,
trauma center and region’s only academic medical center.

By providing these services regardless of a patient’s

ability to pay, the regional healthcare delivery system is
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positively impacted by the services envisioned in the
instant application.

The applicant will have transfer arrangements with the
following hospitals which are owned by Erlanger Health
System.

—— Erlanger Medical Center

-— Erlanger North Hospital

—— T. C. Thompson Children’s Hospital
-— Erlanger Bledsoe Hospital

Further, Erlanger currently has patient transfer
agreements in place with more than 90 hospitals and other

providers in the four (4) state area. These providers
refer patients to Erlanger because of the depth and breadth
of its programs and services. It is anticipated that

Erlanger Behavioral Health will have transfer arrangements
for behavioral health services with a majority of these
providers. A copy of the list of transfer agreements is
attached to this CON application.

2. Describe the positive and / or negative effects of the
proposal on the health care system. Please be sure to
discuss any instances of duplication or competition
arising from your proposal including a description of
the effect the proposal will have on the utilization
rates of existing providers in the service area of the
project.

Response

The effects of this proposal will be positive for the
healthcare system because it will deliver the most
appropriate level of care for those who are in need of
service regardless of ability to pay, and will also
distribute needed services across the service area to
foster improved patient access. By providing this
behavioral health service, the regional healthcare delivery
system is positively impacted by serving as the "“safety
net” for those who are otherwise in need of these necessary
services.

3, Provide the current and/or anticipated staffing
pattern for all employees providing patient care for
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the project. This can be reported using FTE's for
Additionally, please compare the
clinical staff salaries in the proposal to prevailing
wage patterns in the service area as published by the
Tennessee Dept. Of Labor & Workforce Development

these positions.

and/or other documented sources.

Response

Clinical staffing for Erlanger Behavioral Health is
anticipated to be as follows:

Erlanger Bevioral Health -- FTE's By Position Type

CEO
CFO
Coo

Admin Assistant
Billing
Accounting
Marketing

MD
DON

Nurse

Nurse Assistant
Social Worker
Other

Total >>>>

Appropriate salary comparison data is below.

Position

Admin. Assistant
Pt. Billing
Accounting
Marketing Mgr.
Psychiatrist
Psychiatric RN
Psych. Nurse Asst
Social Worker
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NOTES
_11) This information is derived from the internal records of
Erlanger Health System. EHS does not have data for
Psychiatric RN and Nurse Assistant.
(2) The market mid-point is derived from the 2015 Mercer Group
Salary Survey.

4. Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human
resources required by the proposal, including adequate
professional staff, as per the Dept. Of Health, the
Dept. Of Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities,
and/or the Division of Mental Retardation Services
licensing requirements.

Response

The human resources required will be approached with a
proactive recruitment action plan. Historically, Erlanger
has met staffing requirements by utilizing a variety of
methods. Thus, our approach to fulfill the staffing plan
for the Erlanger Behavioral Health will consist of a
proactive plan of marketing, screening, hiring, and
training.

The Human Resources Department at Erlanger will work
closely with managers in the transition. The specifics
will be based on the needs of the organization and aligned
with the strategic needs of the new behavioral health
servie. Erlanger has actively been involved in the
WorkForce Development movement on several different levels
within the Chattanooga area and statewide. Current vacancy
rates are below state and national averages.

Erlanger Health System participates with numerous
schools that provide advanced training in the areas of
nursing and allied health. Therefore, Erlanger expects no
difficulty in recruitment of required staff given it’s role
as an academic medical center and it’s affiliations with
colleges and universities offering allied health and
related training programs.

5. Verify that the applicant has reviewed and understands
all licensing certification as required by the State
of Tennessee for medical/clinical staff. These
include, without limitation, regulations concerning
physician supervision, credentialing, admission
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privileges, quality assurance policies and programs,
utilization review policies and programs, record
keeping, and staff education.

Response

The Applicant has reviewed and intends to comply with
all licensing and certification requirements imposed by
applicable statutes and regulations.

6. Discuss your health care institution’s participation
in the training of students in the areas of medicine,
nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships,
residencies, etc.).

Response

Erlanger Health System, as the region’s only academic
medical center, has established strong long term
relationships with the region’s colleges, universities and
clinical programs. Erlanger provides clinical sites for
internships and rotation programs in nursing, radiology,
respiratory, pharmacy and surgery technology, to name a
few. It is also expected that Erlanger Behavioral Health
will do so as well.

A number of regional universities offer Bachelor
degree programs in nursing and physical therapy. Erlanger
works closely with the University of Tennessee at
Chattanocga to assist nurses transitioning from RN to BSN.
Erlanger provides a teaching environment for staff as well
with various on-the-job training opportunities (ex: CT for
Radiologic Technologist, Certification for LPNs). Locally,
two year degrees are available in many clinical allied
health areas with additional programs offering advanced
technical training in Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear
Medicine, Diagnostic Ultrasonography, etc. Erlanger Health
System participates with numerous schools that provide
advanced training in the areas of nursing and allied
health.

Erlanger has established strong long term
relationships with the region’s colleges, universities and
clinical programs. Erlanger provides clinical sites for
internships and rotation programs in nursing, radiology,
respiratory care and pharmacy, to name a few. A number of
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regional universities offer Bachelor degree programs in
nursing and physical therapy. Locally, two year degrees
are available in many clinical allied health areas with
additional programs offering advanced technical training in
Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear Medicine and
Diagnostic Ultrasonography.

The University of Tennessee — College of Medicine is
co-located at Erlanger and includes training of senior
medical students on clinical rotation as well as graduate
medical education for training of residents and advanced
fellowships in various medical specialties, including
surgical specialties, as outlined below.

Residency Programs
Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Orthopedic Surgery
Pediatrics
Plastic Surgery
Surgery
Urology
Transitional Year

Fellowship Programs
Orthopedic Trauma Surgery
Surgical Critical Care
Vascular Surgery
Colon & Rectal Surgery
Emergency Medicine
Neuro-Interventional Surgery
Ultrasound
Cardiovascular Disease
Gastroenterology (under development)
Radiology (under development)
Neurology (under development)

It should be noted that Erlanger Health System is
currently in discussions with it’s academic partner, the
University of Tennessee - College of Medicine, to explore
the possibility of a graduate medical education and
training residency program in Psychiatry.
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Erlanger Health System also participates with numerous
schools that provide advanced training in the areas of
nursing and allied health.

7. (a) Please verify, as applicable, that the applicant
has reviewed and understands the licensure
requirements of the Dept. Of Health, the Dept. Of
Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities, the
Division of Mental Retardation Services, and/or
any applicable Medicare requirements.

Response

The Applicant has reviewed and intends to comply
with all licensing and certification requirements imposed
by applicable statutes and regulations.

(b) Provide the name of the entity from which the
applicant has received or will receive licensure,
certification, and / or accreditation.

Licensure: State of Tennessee, Dept. of Mental
Health & Substance Abuse

Accreditation: Joint Commission on Accreditation of
Healthcare Organizations

If an existing institution, please describe the
Current standing with any licensing, certifying, or
accrediting agency or commission. Provide a copy of
the current license of the facility.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will continuously strive to
comply with applicable regulations and make needed changes
where deficiencies may arise to ensure full compliance with
applicable standards of care and licensure requirements.

(c¢) For existing licensed providers, document that
all deficiencies (if any) cited in the last
licensure certification and inspection have been
addressed through an approved plan of correction.
Please include a copy of the most recent
licensure/certification inspection with an
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approved plan of correction.
Response

** Not Applicable. **

8. Document and explain any final orders or judgments
entered in any state or country by a licensing agency
or court against professional licenses held by the
applicant or any entities or persons with more than a
5 % ownership interest in the applicant. Such
information is to be provided for licenses regardless
of whether such license is currently held.

Response

This criterion is not applicable because Erlanger
Health System operates as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County
Hospital Authority, which is a governmental unit and a
statutory entity under the State of Tennessee. As such, it
is not possible for there to be any “owners”, per se,
except for the people of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and
the State of Tennessee.

9. Identify and explain any final civil or criminal
judgments for fraud or theft against any person or
entity with more than a 5 % ownership interest in
the project.

Response

This criterion is not applicable because Erlanger
Health System operates as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County
Hospital Authority, which is a governmental unit and a
statutory entity under the State of Tennessee. As such, it
is not possible for there to be any “owners”, per se,
except for the people of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and
the State of Tennessee.

10. If the proposal is approved, please discuss whether
the applicant will provide the Tennessee Health
Services And Development Agency and/or the reviewing
agency information concerning the number of patients
treated, the number and type of procedures performed,
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and other data as required.
Response
Applicant will provide the Health Services And

Development Agency with appropriate information in
consideration of this CON application.
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Attach the full page of the newspaper in which the notice of
intent appeared with the mast and dateline intact or submit a
publication affidavit from the newspaper as proof of publication
of the letter of intent.

Attached is a copy of the Letter Of Intent which was filed
with the Tennessee Health Services & Development Agency on
March 10, 2016. The original publication affidavit is also
attached to this CON application.
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DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(c) provides that a
Certificate of Need is valid for a period not to exceed three (3)
years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other
projects) from the date of its issuance and after such time shall
expire; provided, that the Agency may, in granting the
Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for
Certificates of Need for cause shown. Subsequent to granting a
Certificate of Need, the Agency may extend a Certificate of Need
for a period upon application and good cause shown, accompanied
by a non-refundable reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by rule.
A Certificate of Need which has been extended shall expire at the
end of the extended time period. The decision whether to grant
such an extension is within the sole discretion of the Agency,
and is not subject to review, reconsideration, or appeal.

1. Please complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart
on the next page. If the project will be completed
in multiple phases, please identify the anticipated
completion date for each phase.

Response

The Project Completion Forecast Chart has been
completed and appears on the following page.

2. If the response to the preceding question indicates
that the applicant does not anticipate completing
the project within the period of wvalidity as defined
in the preceding paragraph, please state below any
request for an extended schedule and document the
“good cause” for such an extension.

Response

** Not Applicable. **

Erlanger Behavioral Health
CON Application ~- Page 74 03/14/16 2:11 PM



PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART

Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision Date, as published in Rule 68-11-1609(c): June 22, 2016

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final Agency action on that date; indicate the number of days

from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

Days Anticipated Date
PHASE Required (MONTH / YEAR)
1. Architectural and engineering contract signed. | 082016
2. Construction documents approved by the 210 0372017
Tennessee Dept. Of Health.
3. Construction contract signed. 1 ~03/2017
4. Building permit secured. 15 _04/2017
5. Site preparation completed. 60 06/2017
6. Building construction commenced. I 062017
7. Construction 40 % complete. 120 10/2017
8. Construction 80 % complete. 120 _02/2018
9. Construction 100 % complete (approved 60 042018
for occupancy.
10. *Issuance of license. 30 05/2018
11. *Initiation of service. S ~06/2018
12. Final Architectural Certification Of Payment. 1 06/2018
13. Final Project Report Form (HF0055). S _06/2018
*) For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation, please complete items
10 and 11 only.
NOTE - If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final

determination to reflect the actual issue date.
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF HAMILTON

Joseph M. Winick , being first duly sworn, says

that he / she is the applicant named in this application or
his / her / it’s lawful agent, that this project will be
completed in accordance with the application, that the
applicant has read the directions to this application, the
Agency Rules, and T.C.A. § 68-11-1601, et seq, and that the
responses to this application or any other questions deemed

appropriate by the Tennessee Health Services & Development

Agency are true and complete.
\
LY
SIGNATURE

SWORN to and subscribed before me this | ( of

Mue ot . 20 16 , a Notary Public in and for the
Month Year

State of Tennessee, County of Hamilton.

\ NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires
miigsion expires Ck30b0f10,2n46 20

(Month / Day)
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LETTER OF INTENT
TENNESSEE HEALTH SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the Chattanooga Times Free Press, which is a newspaper
of general circulation in Hamilton County, Tennessee, on or before March 10, 2016, for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services & Development Agency and all interested
parties, in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 ef. seq., and the Rules of the Health Services &
Development Agency, that Erlanger Behavioral Health, LI.C, with an ownership type of for profit, and
to be managed by itself, intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to construct a
new psychiatric hospital with a total complement of eighty-eight (88) inpatient beds, to include
services for inpatients, outpatients and substance abuse. Further, we are requesting approval to transfer
twelve (12) licensed Geriatric — Psychiatric beds currently at Erlanger North Hospital to the new
Erlanger Behavioral Health campus. This will create a net addition of seventy-six (76) new inpatient
psychiatric beds. If approved, the number of hospital beds at Erlanger North Hospital will decrease
from fifty seven (57) beds to forty-five (45) beds upon completion of the project. No other health care
services will be initiated or discontinued.

The facility and equipment will be located at Erlanger Behavioral Health, at a site located at the
intersection of North Holtzclaw Avenue & Citico Avenue, Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee,
37404. The total project cost is estimated to be $ 25,112,600.00. :

The anticipated date of filing the application is March 15, 2016.

The contact person for this project is Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President, Erlanger Health System,
975 East 3 Street, Chattanooga, Tennessee, 37403, and by phone at (423) 778-7274.

March 8, 2016 _Joseph. Winick@erlanger.org,
Date: E-Mail:

The Letter Of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the
last day for filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File this
form at the following address:

Health Services & Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9™ Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

The published Letter Of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. §68-11-1607(c)(1): (A) Any
health care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health
Services and Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and
Development Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to
oppose the application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to
the consideration of the application by the Agency.
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beds upon completion of the project.
Mo other health care services will be
initiated or discontinued.

The lacilily and equipment will be lo-
caled al Erlanger Behavioral Health, at
a sila localed at the intersection of
North Hollzclaw Avenue & Citico Av-
enue, ‘Chattanocga, Hamilton County,
Tennessee, 37404, The total project
cost is estimated to be $ 25,112,600.00.

The anticipated date of filing the appli-
cation is March 15, 2016.

The cantacl person for this project is
Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President,
Erlanger Health System, 975 East 3rd
Streal, Challanooga, Tennessee,
47403, and by phone at (423)
7787374,

Upan wrilten request by intarested par-
lies, a local Fact-Finding pubilic hearing
shall be conducted. Written requesis
for hearing should be sent to:

Heallh Services & Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Pursuant lo 7.C.A. § 68-1 1-150?{.:21(1):
(A) Any health care inslitution wishing
1o appose a Cerlilicale Of Meed appli-
cation musl lla a wiilten notice with the
Health Serviges and Davelopment
Apency no later than lilleen (16) days
balore the regularly schedulad Healih
Services and Develppmenl Agency
meeting at which the application is
arlginally scheduled; and ( %.Any ather

erson wishing lo oppose the applica-
ion musl e wiilten objection with the
Heallh Services and Developmant
Agency at or prior to the consideration
af the application by the Agency.
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ERLANGER STRATEGIC

STATE OF TENNESSEE
HAMILTON COUNTY

Before me personally appeared Jim Stevens who being duly sworn,
that he is the Legal Sales Representative of the "CHATTANOOGA
TIMES FREE PRESS" and that the Legal Ad of which the attached is

a true copy, has been published in the above said Newspaper and on
the website on the following dates, to-wit:

March 10, 2016

And that there is due or has been paid the "CHATTANOOGA
TIMES FREE PRESS" for publication of such notice the sum of

$223.71 Dollars. (Includes $10.00 Affidavit Ch 'g%
qu?

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this 10th day of
March, 2016.

S\OA G, linimda ity

My Commission Expires 10/17/2018

Chattanonga Times Free Jress



NOTIFICATION QF INTENT TO
APPLY FOR A
CERTIFICATE OF NEED

This is to provide ollicial notice to the
Healih Services & Developmeni Agency
and all inlerested parlies, in accor-
dance with T.C.A § 68-11-1601 el.
seq., and the Rulss of the Health Ser-
vices & Development Agency, \hat Er-
langer Behavioral Heallh, LLC, with an
awnarship lype of for profit, and to ba
managed by tsell, Intends to file an ap-
plication for a Ceriffoate of Need
(*CON’) 10 constiuet a new psyehialrlc
haspital with a lotal cumgln_menl uf
aighty-eight (88) inpatient beds, to in-
clude services tor Inpatients, outpa-
lients and substance ahuse. Further,
wi are requesting n|:(u£|mu:ll 1o transier
twelve (1’3 heensed Garatritc - Psychi-
atric bads currently at Erlangar Narth
Hospital 1o the new Erlanger Beluay-
joral Health campus. This will oreate a
net addition ol seventy-six CI?E) fEw in-
patient paychiatne bads. 1l approved,
the number of hospilal beds at Er-
langsr Morth Hospital will decreass lrom
filly seven (57) beds o lorty-live (45)
bads upon complation ol the prniecl.
Mo other health care services will be
initlated or discontinued.

The facility and equipment will be lo-
catad at Erlangar Behayioral Health, at
# site locatad at the Intersection of
North Holtzclaw Avenue & Citico Av-
enue, Chattanonga, Hamillon County,
Tennessae, 37404, The total project
cost is estimated to be $ 25,112,600.00.

The anlicipated date of filing \he appli-
calion is March 15, 2016.

The contact parson for this project is
Josaph M, Winlck, Sr. Vice Prasident,
Erlanger Health System, 975 East 3rd
Street, Chattanooga, Tennesses,
A7403, and by phone at (423)
778-7274.

Upon written request by interested par-
ties, a local Fact-Finding public hearing
shall be conducted. Wrilten requesis
for hearing should be sent to:

Heallh Services & Development Agency
Andrew Jackstin Building, 8th Floor
502 Deaderick Slreet
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Pursuan| 10 T.C.A, § 68-11-16807(c){1):
(A) Any health care Institulion wishing
10 oppose a Cediflcate Of Nead appli-
cation must file a written notice with the
Health Services and Development
Agency no laler than lifteen (15) days
belore the regularly schaduled Health
Sarvices and Devalopment Agency
mesating at which the application is
originally scheduled, and (B) Any ather
person wishing to apposa the applica-
tian must file writtan objection with the
Heallh Services and Development
Ageney at ar prior to the consideration
ol ihe application by Ihe Agancy.
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Secretary Of State Acknowledgement
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SERd STATE OF TENNESSEE

VI Sl
AN Tre Hargett, Secretary of State

gisi Division of Business Services
s William R. Snodgrass Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th FL
Nashville, TN 37243-1102

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC March 7, 2016
975 E3RD ST
CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403-2147

Filing Acknowledgment
Please review the filing information below and notify our office immediately of any discrepancies.

SOS Control # : 000838066 Formation Locale; TENNESSEE
Filing Type: Limited Liability Company - Domestic Date Formed: 03/07/2016

Filing Date: 03/07/2016 3:15 PM Fiscal Year Close: 6

Status: Active Annual Report Due; 10/01/2016
Duration Term: Perpetual Image # . B0210-0685
Managed By: Director Managed

Business County: HAMILTON COUNTY

- Document Fie(:eipt

Receipt #: 002510157 Filing Fee: $300.00
Payment-Check/MO - BAKER, DONELSON, BEARMAN, CALDWELL & BERKOWITZ, NASHVILI $300.00
Registered Agent Address: Principal Address:

NATIONAL REGISTERED AGENTS, INC. 975 E 3RD ST

STE 2021 CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403-2147

800 S GAY ST

KNOXVILLE, TN 37929-9710

Congratulations on the successful filing of your Articles of Organization for Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC in the
State of Tennessee which is effective on the date shown above. You must also file this document in the office of the
Register of Deeds in the county where the entity has its principal office if such principat office is in Tennessee.

Please visit the Tennessee Department of Revenue website (apps.tn.gov/bizreg) to determine your online tax
registration requirements. If you need to obtain a Certificate of Existence for this entity, you can request, pay for, and
recieve it from our website.

You must file an Annual Report with this office on or before the Annual Report Due Date noted above and maintain a
Registered Office and Registered Agent. Failure to do so will subject the business to Administrative

Dissolution/Revocation.

Tre Hargett
Processed By: Carol Dickerson Secretary of State

Phone (615) 741-2286 * Fax (615) 741-7310 * Website: hitp://tnbear.tn.gov/



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION b
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY (210, Page 1 of2 =
Business Services Division

For Office Use Only LA
Tre Hargett, Secretary of State

State of Tennessee N,
312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th Fl, A g AR i
Nashville, TN 37243-1102 % % i 1
(615) 741-2286 b % - 3,

Filing Fee: $50.00 per member [
(minimum fee = $300, maximum fee = $3,000) et

The Articles of Organization presented herein are adopted in accordance with the provisions of the Tennessee Revised
Limited Liability Company Act.

[0

1. The name of the Limited Liability Company is: _Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC tn

(NOTE: Pursuant to the provisions of T.C.A, §48-249-108, each Limited Liability Company name must contain the words “Limited )
Liability Company" or the abbreviation "LLC" or "L.L.C.") 4

2. Name Consent: (Written Consent for Use of Indistinguishable Name) o
[C] This entlty name already exists in Tennesses and has received name consent from the exlsting entity. 0

3. This company has the additional designation of: N/A .

4. The name and complete address of ithe Limited Liability Company's initial registered agent and office located in the state of ;
Tennessee is: 7

MG

Name: National Registered Agents, Inc. i

Address: 800 S. Gay Street, Suite 2021 i
City: Knoxville State: TN Zip Code: 37929 County: Kuox o
b

5. Fiscal Year Close Month:i__June [

8. If the document is not to be effective upon filing by the Secretary of Stats, the delayed effective date and time is: (Not to exceed 90 days)

Effective Date; — Time: il
Month  Day Year ';:]

7. The Limited Liability Company will be:  [[] Member Managed [C1 Manager Managed Director Managed o

8. Number of Members at the date of filing: ! w

9. Period of Duration: Perpetual ] other i ]

Manth Day Year
ﬂéu
10. The complete address of the Limited Liability Company's principal executive office is: 1}3
Address: 975 East 3rd Street (o

City: Chattanooga State: IN Zip Code: 37419 County: Hamilton

Rev. 10/12 RDA 2458 i

TNO43N - 7/15/2014 Wallers Kluwer Online
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[l
ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION i

I
0
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY (ss-s270) Page 2 of 2 m
For Qffice Use Only ?p
ittt Business Services Division -
T RV : Tre Hargett, Secretary of State £
i T NN State of Tennessee 3
: H 312 Rosa L. Parks AVE, 6th FL. 05
3 A Nashville, TN 37243-1102 ]
3 (615) 741-2286 \
e, bl
Filing Fee: $50.00 per member )
(minimum fee = $300, maximum fee = $3,000) :'F‘;
The name of the Limited Liability Company is: _Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC s
U
11. The complete mailing address of the entity (If different from the principal office) is: it
Address: Same as above o
City: State: Zip Code: _ :[[E

b
12. Non-Profit LLC (required only if the Additional Designation of “Non-Profit LLC" is entered in section 3.) wh
[ | certlfy that this entity is a Non-Profit LLC whose sole member is a nonprofit corporation, foreign or domestic, incorporated i
under or subject to the provisions of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act and who is exempt from franchise and excise g
tax as not-for-profit as defined in T.C.A. §67-4-2004. The business is disregarded as an entity for federal income tax purposes. b

<,

13. Professional LLC (required only if the Additional Designation of "Professional LLC" is entered in section 3.) :g
[ | certify that this PLLC has ane or more qualified persons as members and no disqualified persons as members or holders. "
Licensed Profession: _?‘
14. Serles LLC (required only if the Additional Designation of "Series LLC" is entered in section 3) ]
l

1 certify that this entity meets the requirements of T.C.A. §48-240-309(a) & (b) i

b |

15, Obligated Member Entity (list of obligated members and signatures must be attached) i%t
[] This entity will be registered as an Obligated Member Entity (OME) Effective Date: / / i
Month  Day Year il

]! understand that by statute: THE EXECUTION AND FILING OF THIS DOCUMENT WILL CAUSE THE MEMBER(S) TO BE i
PERSONALLY LIABLE FOR THE DEBTS, OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITIES OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY TO W

THE SAME EXTENT AS A GENERAL PARTNER OF A GENERAL PARTNERSHIP. CONSULT AN ATTORNEY. i}

n.

16. This entity is prohibited from dolng business in Tennessee: :Ij
[ This entity, while being formed under Tennessee law, is prohibited from engaging in business in Tennessee. it

!

17. Other Provisions: The following are appointed as the initial directors of the Limited Liability Company: "
Gregg Gentry, Joseph Winick, FACHE, Robert Brooks, FACHE, Jeff Woodard, and Brilt Tabor, FACHE. Cl
/ 4y
Gt
March 4, 2016 @4%0 ﬂ M\_/ et
Signature Date Signatuné - ﬁ

il
Organizer Philip S. McSween v
Signer's Capacity (if other than individual capacity) Name (printed or typed) 3
o

fir

3!

4
Rev. 10/12 RDA 2458 ﬁ

TNO43N - 7/15/2014 Woliers Kluwer Online
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Letter Of Agreement - Real Estate Option A-6
Option To Purchase Real Estate A-6



&erlanger

February 17,2016

Mr. Jimmy Hudson, President

Hudson Companiés @ The Terrace at Frazier
Suite 201

345 Frazier Avenua
Chattanooga, TN

RE: Option Agreement
Erlanger Real Estate

Dear Mr. Hudsoh:

Attached is an edited and updated version of the option agreement to be utilized to secure the property

we have discussed. Please review and let me know if questions.

In connection with the attached option agreement, this letter of agreement (“LOA”) serves to
memorialize the following agreement and understandings between Erlanger Health System (“Erfanger”)
and Hickory Land Company, LLC (“Purchaser”) regarding that certain Option ta Purchase Real Estate
(“Option Agreement”) between Medical Development Partners, LLC (“Seller”} and Purchaser. Purchaser
acknowledges that the Option Agreement provides for the right of Purchaser to assign the Option
Agreement and the rights under such at any time with Seller’s consent.

Purchaser further agrees that it is entering into such Option Agreement on Erlanger’'s behalf and agrees,
upon notice from Erlanger, to execute an Assignment and Assumption Agreement whereby Purchaser
irrevocably assigns to Erlangerorto a subsidiary or affillate of Erlanger {including a joint venture) at
Erlanger’s discretion, all of purchaser’s rights, benefits, title, interests, ltabilities and cbligations as
purchaser under the Option Agreement and any other necessary ancillary documents related to the

Option Agreement or purchase of the subject res) estate.

purchaser further agrees to not exercise any of Purchaser's rights under the Option Agreement without
Erlanger’s consent. In the event the Option Agreement has not baen assigned prior to the expiration of
the initial 6 months, Purchaser agrees to only renew its option to purchase under the Option Agreefnent
upbn the consent of Etlanger. In the event of such, purchaser shall pay Seller the full sum of the Earnest
Money and Erlanger, or its subsidiary or affiliate, as appropriate, shall reimburse Purchaser such

amount.

975 East Third Street, Chattanooga, TN 37403 (423) 7787000 www.erlanger.org



uncernents regarding this relationship and transaction or

' ‘Purchaser agrees not to make any public anno
Juding this LOA, without the prior written cansent of

“""to disclose any information related thereto, inc
Erlanger.
Erlanger shall pay Purchaser the-commission specified in the Listing Agreement submitted by Purchaser

to Erlanger onh the terms set _fo_r_'th therein. Erlanger shall indemnify, defend and hold harmiess
purchaser for any claims, Josses'and expenses whatsoever, incurred by Purchaser, acting within the

scope of his agency relationship.

Sincerely, Agreed [Purchaser)
Hickory Land Company, LLC

%M L . et

C@@Winid@ FACHE * Jimm%n, President

Senior Vice Prasident,
Planning, Analytics & Business Development

Ce: Mike Baker



OPTION TO PURCHASE REAL ESTATE

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ?/% day of _/ M g

/&0 , by and between Medical Development Partners, LLC, a TN Corp. ("Seller") a

Hickory Land Company, LLC, TN Corp ("Purchaser").
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain real property, located in the City of
Chattanooga, County of Hamilton, State of Tennessee, being a tract of land containing 6 acres,
more or less, located at 804 N. Holtzclaw Ave, and more particularly described as Tax Parcel(s)
146C A 022 & 023 and hereafter referred to as "the Property"; and

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to secure an option to purchase the Property from Seller,
and Seller desires to grant such option to Purchaser;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the mutual covenants and
promises herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Option to Purchase.

(a)  In consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid to Seller by Purchaser,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Seller hereby grants to Purchaser
the exclusive right and option to purchase the Property, together with all improvements,
easements, and appurtenances thereto.

(b)  This option to purchase shall remain in effect for a pegiod of Nine Months (270
days) from the date of this agreement, and shall expire on the i day of M,

20 ZZ , at 12:00 o'clock noon, Eastern Time (the "Expiration Date"), after which time this
option to purchase shall be null and void and of no further legal force and effect unless Purchaser
has exercised its option pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 2 hereof or renewed its option
pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 1(c) hereof.

(© Purchaser may renew this option for an additional period of Three Months, (90
days) from the Expiration Date by paying to Seller additional consideration of Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000) before the Expiration Date. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
apply to any such renewal.

2. Notice of Exercise and Payment of Earnest Money.

At any point during the initial nine month option period or renewal option. Purchaser
may give Seller written notice of its intention to exercise this option to purchase, which notice
shall be delivered in person or by registered or certified mail as hereinafter prescribed, within the
option period, together with payment of the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars (§50,000) by
certified check or cashier's check (the "Earnest Money"). Upon such notice and payment of the
Eamnest Money, this agreement shall automatically become a contract of purchase and sale,
binding upon Seller and Purchaser as hereinafter set forth.

3. Purchase Price and Payment.

The total purchase price for the Property shall be Eight Hundred Twenty Five
Thousand Dollars ($825,000). All payments made by Purchaser as consideration for this option
or any renewal hereof and the Eamnest Money shall be credited toward the total purchase price.
The remainder of the total purchase price shall be paid by certified check or cashier's check on
the date of closing (as herein defined).

00001_00/9733/CLL-567291_v2



4, Closing and Conditions Precedent to Closing,.

(a) Upon receipt by Seller of Purchaser's notice of intent to exercise the option
granted hereunder, the closing of this transaction shall take place on or before the 60th day
following such receipt at such time and place as agreed to by Seller and Purchaser, unless Seller
and Purchaser agree to postpone the closing to a later date.

(b)  During the initial 9 month option period and the renewal option, if applicable.
Purchaser shall retain all rights to complete inspections, including but not limited to land
surveys, environmental studies, utilities and progress in pending zoning changes with written
notice to Seller, and at any point prior to exercising its option to purchase under Section 2.
Purchaser may terminate this agreement for reason of an unsatisfactory inspection or
determination that the property is not sufficient to meet Purchaser’s intended use. Upori such
termination all Earnest Money paid will be returned to Purchaser immediately.

(©) Seller is the sole owner of, and has good and markable leasehold title to, the
Property, and the Property is free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, claims, demands,
easements, covenants, restrictions and encroachments of any kind or nature. Provider however, if
the Property is subject to liens and security interests in favor of
("Creditor") and may not be transferred without the consent of Creditor. Upon receipt by Seller
of Purchaser's notice of intent to exercise this option, Seller will use its best efforts to obtain the
consent of Creditor to the sale of the Property and the release of the liens and security interests of
Creditor upon terms satisfactory to Seller. If Seller is unable to obtain such consents and/or
releases, this option shall terminate and be of no further force or effect and Seller shall return to
Purchaser all consideration paid for this option or any renewal thereof pursvant to paragraph 1
hereof and all Earnest Money paid by Purchaser to Seller.

(d)  Seller represents to the best of Seller’s knowledge, unless otherwise disclosed,
that the Property is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or floodplain; there are no violations of
building, zoning or fire codes; there are no encroachments or violations of setback lines,
easements or property boundary lines; and there are no boundary line disputes. If at any time the
title examination, mortgage loan inspection, survey or other information discloses any such
defects, or if the Purchaser discovers that any representation in this agreement is fact untrue.
Purchaser may, by delivering written notice to seller, either (1) accept the Property with the
defects, OR (2) cancel this Agreement and all Earnest Money will be refinded to Buyer. OR (3)
Purchaser may extend the closing date up to 14 calendar days to perform additional due
diligence, retaining the right to exercise option (1) or (2) above.

(e) At the time of closing, Purchaser shall deliver to Seller a certified or cashier's
check in the amount of the Final Balance.

) At the time of closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser a general warranty deed in
proper form for recording, with the usual covenants and warranties, conveying good and
marketable title (such as will be insured by any responsible title insurance company) to the
Property in fee simple to Purchaser, its successors, assigns, or nominee, subject to all easements,
covenants, agreements, and restrictions of record or set forth on attached Exhibit B. In the event
title is not as herein set forth, Purchaser may either take such title as Seller can give without
abatement of price, or demand in writing the return of all monies paid by Purchaser, which return
Seller agrees to make, and in the latter event, there shall be no further obligation by either of the
parties hereto, and this Agreement shall become null and void.

(g)  All ad valorem real property taxes for the year in which the sale of the property
takes place shall be prorated to the date of closing. Likewise, should Purchaser desire to
continue in force any insurance of the Property issued to Seller, the premiums for all such
insurance shall be prorated to the date of closing.

(h)  Purchaser shall pay all costs associated with closing, including preparation of the
general warranty deed, closing fees, recording fees and transfer taxes in connection with the
delivery and recordation of the general warranty deed.

00001(_00/9733/CLL-567291_v2



S. . Title Insurance.

Owner's title insurance in connection with the purchase of the Property contemplated
herein shall be the responsibility of Seller. Seller agrees that it will cooperate with Purchaser in
its efforts to obtain owner's title insurance and will supply any documents and information in its
possession conceming title to the Property which are requested by Purchaser.

6. Purchaser's Right of Inspection.

During the option period, and during that period after exercise of the option but prior to
the date of closing, Purchaser, together with its agents and employees, shall have the right and is
hereby authorized to enter upon the Property and make such inspections of the land, surveys, and
soil tests on the Property as they shall deem necessary and appropriate, together with such other
investigations with respect to the current zoning of the Property and allowed uses of the Property
as they shall deem necessary and appropriate.

7. Condemnation of Property.

In the event that prior to the date of closing the Property is condemned, then Seller
hereby agrees to return to Purchaser (a) all consideration paid for this option or any renewal
hereof if such condemnation occurs before exercise of the option, or (b) all consideration paid for
this option together with the Earnest Money paid upon exercise, if such condemnation occurs
after exercise of this option but before the date of closing. Such refund payment shall be made
by Seller with or without demand by Purchaser.

8. Possession.

Seller shall continue in possession of the Property during the term of this option and
thereafter, if such option is exercised, until the date of closing, and Seller shall maintain the
Property in its present condition.

9, Commissions and Finder's Fees.

Each of the parties represents that the negotiations relative to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby have been carried on by Purchaser directly with Seller and in
such manner as not to give rise to any valid claims against any of the parties hereto fora
brokerage commission, findet's fee, or other like payment.

10. Default by Purchaser.

Should Purchaser, after exercise of this option, fail to carry out and perform in
accordance with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement, all consideration paid for this
option, including any consideration paid for renewal of this option, and the Earnest Money shall
be forfeited by Purchaser as liquidated damages.

11. Notice.

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement, or which either party desires to
give to the other, shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when deposited in the United
States mail (registered or certified mail with return receipt requested), postage prepaid, and
addressed as follows:

Seller: Medical Development Partners, LLC
201 W. East Main Street, Suite 100
Chattanooga TN 37408
(Jon@kphdevelopment.com)

00001_00/9733/CLL-567291_v2



Purchaser: Hickory Land Company
5959 Shallowford Road, Suite 433
Chattanooga TN 37421
jimmy@hudson-companies.com

12. Assignment.

Purchaser shall have the right to assign this Agreement at any time without prior consent
of Seller,

13. Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and
assigns of Seller and Purchaser.

14. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. No representations,
warranties, or promises, other than as expressly set out herein, have been made by either party to
the other to induce the execution of this Agreement. No waiver or modification of this
Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and duly signed by the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day

and year first above written.

SELLER:

ATTEST:

7

3__: K /L/" By: J%{ﬁgp MANAGER

PURCHASER:

I m
ATTEST: &k/

m&/‘ Jim Nulison, III, President

00001_00/9733/CLL-567291_v2



STATE OF 'um:.ssbf"

COUNTY OF Hawy [ton

= Before me, a Notary Public of the state and county aforesaid, personally appeared

o 0] and , with whom I am personally acquainted (or
proved to'me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged

themselvestobe " esident and
l‘ij_(,z ovy Land , the within named bargainor, a corporation, and that they as

such Fastdlunt  and . executed the foregoing instrument for
purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by themselves as

Lesiduat and
WITNESS my hand and seal, at office in ch.H'q (4] 00
of  Mlavch ;

—T't/, this Bth day

o

:eys‘“ YN R‘q ""'
s { sNot'gry Public
o | E,:"gas:fe .My._ﬂnmmissiun Expires: / 2/
2%, PUBLC

STATE OF \€naeSS€€% fzs 00
J'{f’ c.
COUNTY OF \'kﬁ\.\\%ﬂ

Before me, a Notary Public of the state and county aforesaid, personally appeared

on M. M3 and , with whom [ am personally
acquainted (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath,
acknowledged lhemsﬁu e( h]f& i)@ [g ng ﬂnf ¢ and of
0 Ae he within named bargairtor, a corporation, and that they as such
Lhae r\,q_ {,r and , executed the foregoing
instrument ses therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by them-
selves as na{yand
Mﬁ]fiS&my‘ hand and seal, at office in Cmﬂﬁm:m TN this&‘—k' day of
ey DA Heblamk
§ STATE Nufary Public
i OF My Commission Expires 01- lO-\q
s NOTARY
aq'o%# ."'Ouuuw
“"f,‘ rON .\"“
RO
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Square Footage & Cost Per Square Foot Chart B-II-A
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County

Hamilton

Bledsoe
Bradley
Grundy
Marion
McMinn
Meigs
Polk
Rhea
Sequatchie
Catoosa
Dade
Walker

Dekalb
Jackson
Chattooga
Fannin
Gilmer
Gordon
Murray
Whitfield
Cherokee
Coffee
Cumberland
Franklin
Loudon
Monroe
Roane
Van Buren
Warren

State
TN

TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
GA
GA
GA

AL
AL
GA
GA
GA
GA
GA
GA
NC
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN

Service
Area

PSA

SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA

TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
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STENGEL-HILL ARCHITECTURE

Joseph M. Winick, FACHE

Senior Vice President

Planning, Analytics & Business Development
Erlanger Health System

975 Fast 3™ Street

Chattanooga, TN 37403

RE: Attestation of Construction Cost H
New Behavioral Health Hospital

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC {
Chattanooga, Tennessee .

14 March 2016
SHA.AHC1504
Joe,

Per recent conversations with you regarding a Certificate of Need Submission for a New Behavioral Health
Hospital for Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC in Chattanooga, Tennessee, | have prepared the following
supporting documentation for your review.

[ have reviewed the construction cost estimate provided by Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC in the CON
Submission for this Project. Based on my experience and knowledge of the current health care market, it is
my opinion that the projected construction cost of $18,720,000 appears to be reasonable for a project of this
type and size.

Additionally, please note that the Project will be designed in compliance with all applicable State and Federal
Regulations, including the following:

Guidelines for the Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities

Rules of the Tennessee Department of Health - Board for Licensing Health Care Facilities
International Building Code

National Electrical Code

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Codes

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

2 22 2 22

If you have any questions or comments regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact me at
your convenience.

Thank you.

\\\\“"”“'J’;
\..\\‘ QO?'D P.§ ?‘@ 7,

Bradford P. Stengel, AIA
o

Senior Principal v s
Stengel Hill Ar.chitecture lpcorporated f,’, ef;"-ﬂ“-ﬂﬂﬁlg.‘i".%@e
Tennessee Registered Architect No. #000102 523 z,’, Oj:"“;qﬁ$%\‘\\\

%y TER (W
copy: Andy Hanner AHC IO

613 WEST MAIN STREET LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY 40202
tel: 502.893.1875 fax: 502.893.1876 www.stengelhill.com
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March 11, 2016

Melanie Hill, Executive Director

Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency
Frost Building, Third Floor

161 Rosa Parks Boulevard

Nashvllle, Tennessee 37203

RE: Financing Commitment
Erlanger Behavioral Heaith, LLC
Hamilton County

Dear Mrs. Hili:

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC, a proposed joint venture of Erlanger Health System and
Acadia Healthcare, is applying for a Certificate of Need to establish a new psychiatric
and substance abuse hospital in Hamilton County.

This letter is to confirm that Acadia Healthcare will provide the approximately

$25,112,600 in funding required to construct the hospital and implement that project.
Acadia intends to finance these costs with cash on hand and borrowings from its existing

revolving credit facifity.
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

/e IOF

David Duckworth
CFO

6100 Tower Citcle, Suite 1000 ¢ Hranklin, TN 37067+ Office: 615.861.6000
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Historical Data Chart -- Summary Of Other Expenses

Description

Total -- All Other
Purchased Services

Utilities

Drugs

Insurance and Taxes

Purchased Services

620142
620252
620302
620322
620332
620352
620492
620502
620522
620523
620532
620542
620562
620572
620573
620574
620582
620602
620622
620682
620692
620792
620892
620902
620912
620922
620932
620933
620952
620953
620982
621182
621202
621272
621532
621972
622002

Utilities
640702

Restricted Fund Expense
Physician Fees
Consulting

Legal Fees

Audit Fees

Architect & Eng Fees
Time & Mat Contract
Dietary

Unscheduled Maint
CUC Delivery/Vehicle Expense
Advertising

Purchased Services
Purchased Maint
Freight Charges

CUC Penalties

CUC Late Fees
Collection Fees

Lab QOutside Fees
Computer Services
Micro Maint

Equipment Rental
Contracted Services
Membership & Dues
Special Classes

Licenses & Fees
Development Costs
Professional Education
CUC Meals & Entertainment
Local Travel

CUC Field Trip Expense
Business Courtesy
Asbestos Expense
Recruiting

Resident Education
Public Relations

Patient parking
Med/Prof Housing Expense

Billed Utilities

FY 2013

156,440,656
111,584,374
9,736,115
32,921,513
2,198,654

111,584,374
76,633
20,510,257
8,018,102
2,393,527
194,406
182,585
3,023,421
621,402
4,687,799
32,607
2,555,479
29,055,253
3,220,291
314,512
1,425
4,971
738,913
3,205,690
4,970,519
74,128
3,033,690
18,663,071
1,167,871
27,957
1,281,524
176,338
1,045,961
11,491
323,282
12,657
44,274
128,761
670,202
295,055
487,507
217,813
115,000

9,736,115
-461,256

FY 2014

166,565,645
114,459,641
10,012,328
39,370,552
2,723,124

114,459,641
117,503
20,661,564
1,421,495
3,057,657
189,312
360,654
4,101,893
685,028
5,182,758
17,732
2,490,627
31,846,157
4,115,060
293,794

7,378
904,813
3,257,673
5,156,385
60,533
3,605,722
20,802,740
948,989
45,251
1,379,705
406,179
1,161,763
1,291
287,345
23,799
13,444
63,639
824,569
295,284
271,427
213,034
187,444

10,012,328
-576,458

FY 2015

190,945,905
137,413,193
9,572,575
43,565,706
394,431

137,413,193
208,885
20,931,912
1,089,231
8,823,824
182,998
613,919
4,899,444
616,065
4,092,044
13,351
3,074,645
36,829,150
3,668,545
376,663
534

4,819
1,258,006
3,895,713
5,329,474
53,293
4,984,163
29,254,214
1,218,596
5,251
1,572,753
503,177
1,549,923
2,049
330,427
28,131
15,270
67,203
1,025,697
10,154
516,360
367,196
114

9,572,575
-708,356



640712
640722
640732
640742
640752
640882

Drugs
630403

Historical Data Chart -- Summary Of Other Expenses

Electricity

Gas

Water

Qil

Storm Water Fees
Telephone

Drugs

Insurance and Taxes

670847
670857
680878
680880

Self Insurance Expense
Insurance

CUC Taxes - Sales
Gross Receipts Tax

5,927,593
1,559,592
1,136,971
6,450
39,551
1,527,215

32,921,513
32,921,513

2,198,654
952,825
1,207,188
629
38,012

6,124,308
1,848,971
1,195,584
19,507
43,267
1,357,149

39,370,552
39,370,552

2,723,124
704,755
1,971,569
178
46,622

6,237,145
1,561,890
1,122,990
27,417
34,913
1,256,576

43,565,706
43,565,706

3,194,431
777,476
2,376,846
340
39,769



Projected Data Chart - Summary Of Other Expenses

Year1 Year2
Contract Labor 131,963 262,208
Provision for income taxes (807,946) 76,293
Purchased Services 323,925 586,215
Professional Fees 489,495 857,781
Utilities 240,000 247,200
Repairs & Maintenance 60,000 61,800
Insurance 144,000 148,320
Enterprise Growth 96,000 98,880
Total Outside Provider Expense 0 0
Other Operating Expenses 443,925 709,815

Total 1,121,362 3,048,512
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Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

Quarter Ending
December 31, 2015

This financial report is confidential and proprietary
information. This document is not a public record until
finalized and released by the chief financial officer.

The embargo date for the information contained herein is
January:. 25,2016 at 5P.M. EST. ©No part of the information
contained herein may be released or discussed publicly until
this date.



ERLANGER HEALTH SYSTEM

Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets as of: December 31, 2015

[ ASSETS

UNRESTRICTED FUND

CURRENT:
Cash and temporary Investments
Funds held by trustee - current portion

Patient accounts receivable
Less allowances for patient A/R

Net patient accounts receivable

Other receivables.

Due from third party payors
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Net property, plant and equipment

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

OTHER ASSETS:
Assets whose use is limited
Deferred debt issue cost
Other assets
Total other assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments
Deferred amounts from debt refunding

TOTAL

| LIABILITIES

UNRESTRICTED FUND

CURRENT:
Current maturities of long term debt
Accounts payable/unearned income
Accrued salaries & related liabilities
Due to third party payors
Construction fund payable
Accrued Interest payable

Total current liabilities

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(GASB 67/68 & FAS 112)
RESERVE FOR OTHER LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments
Deferred gain from sale-leaseback
LONG - TERM DEBT
FUND BALANCE:

Unrestricted

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted

TOTAL

$

$

| 2016 | 2015 |
58,648,719 § 48,577,896
- 52,298
438,100,622 354,232,363

(327,996,012) (276,421,074)
110,104,610 77,811,289
38,401,236 38,167,740
8,665,590 23,125,718
14,387,948 12,938,442
8,440,124 7,040,384
238,648,227 207,713,768
157,916,925 141,112,886
249,473 602,850
174,512,430 202,886,315
805,890 1,980,398
1,612,580 1,632,856
176,930,900 206,499,568

3,959,346 -

594,406 680,344
578,299,277 § 556,609,415

| 2016 | 2015 |
4,984,135 § 4,566,185
48,171,346 42,896,883
20,046,228 17,334,117
- 1,332,482
743,413 15,111
2,289,743 808,308
76,234,865 66,953,086
54,558,572 28,652,013
17,901,982 20,068,640

318,312 .

3,470,969 3,935,725
207,114,126 228,436,439
204,174,167 201,994,358
9,146,716 1,491,948
5,379,567 5,077,206
218,700,451 208,563,512
578,299,277 § 556,609,415
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PERSHING YOAKLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

Bt One Cherokee Mills, 2220 Sutherland Avenve

=, Knoxville, TN 37919

Y p: (865) 6730844 | F: (865) 6730173

fe Www.pyapc.com

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System):

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the business-type activities
of Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Health System (the Primary
Health System) and its discretely presented component units, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the combined financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Primary Health System’s basic combined financial statements as listed in the table of

contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these combined financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material

misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstanices, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Primary Health System’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

- 1
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of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component units of the Primary Health System as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Maiter

As discussed in Note A to the combined financial statements, during the year ended June 30,
2015, the Primary Health System adopted a newly issued accounting standard that requires
retroactive adjustments to amounts previously reported with a cumulative effect adjustment to
net position as of June 30, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (shown on pages 3
through 10), the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (shown on
page 48) and the Schedule of Actuarial Contributions (shown on page 49) be presented to
supplement the basic combined financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic combined financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
combined financial statements in an appropriate operational, economie, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards genecrally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic combined
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic combined
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Knoxville, Tennessee
September 17, 2015
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2015
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger
Health System’s financial performance provides an overview of financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015.

Erlanger Health System (the Primary Health System) is the largest healthcare provider in
Southeast Tennessee. The Primary Health System maintains a number of very specialized
clinical services such as Level 1 trauma, Level Il neonatal, kidney transplantation, a Regional
Cancer Unit, a full service children’s hospital, and open heart surgery, all of which are primarily
serviced by four “Life Force” helicopters and supported by subspecialty physicians (residents,
faculty and private attending physicians) located on its campuses. '

OVERVIEW OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The combined financial statements consist of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis
and the combined financial statements. The combined financial statements also include notes
that explain in more detail some of the information in the combined financial statements,

The combined financial statements of the Primary Health System offer short-term and long-term
financial information about its activities. The combined statements of net position include all of
the Primary Health System’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the Primary Health System’s
creditors (liabilities). The assets and liabilities are presented in a classified format, which
distinguishes between current and long-term assets and liabilities. It also provides the basis for
computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the Primary Health System and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Primary Health System.

All of the fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the combined statements of
revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. These statements measure the success of the
Primary Health System’s operations and can be used to determine whether the Primary Health
System has successfully recovered all of its costs through the services provided, as well as its
profitability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the combined statement of cash flows. The primary
purpose of this statement is to provide information about the Primary Health System’s cash
receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, non-capital
financing and financing activities. The statement also provides answers to such questions as
where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance

during the reporting period?




CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Exlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

The analysis of the combined financial statements of the Primary Health System begins on the
next page. One of the most important questions asked about the Primary Health System’s
finances is “Is the financial condition of the Primary Health System as a whole better or worse as
a result of the fiscal year's activities?” The combined statements of net position and the
combined statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position report information about
the Primaty Health System’s activities in a way that will help answer this question, These two
statements report the net position of the Primary Health System and changes in the net position.
One can think of the Primary Health System’s net position — the difference between assets and
liabilities — as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Primary Health System’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or. deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial
factors such as changes in economic conditions, regulations and new or changed government

legislation.

REPORTING ENTITY

The Chattancoga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Brlanger Health System (the
Primary Health System) was created by a private act passed by the General Assembly of the
State of Tennessee on March 11, 1976, and adopted by a majority of the qualified voters of
Hamilton County, Tennessee on August 5, 1976. The Primary Health System is considered the
primary governmental unit for financial reporting purposes. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, these financial statements present the Primary Health System and its
component units. The component units discussed below are included in the Primary Health
System’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational, financial or other
relationships with the Primary Health System.

ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC (Cyberknife), UT-Exlanger
Medical Group, Inc. (the Medical Group) and Erlanger Health Plan Trust are legally separate
organizations for which the Primary Health System is either financially accountable or owns a
majority interest. Accordingly, these organizations represent component units of the Primary
Health System. The financial statements of Erlanger Health Plan Trust are blended with the
financial statements of the Primary Health System, as the Board of Erlanger Health Plan Trust is
substantially the same as that of the Primary Health System and the Primary Health System has
operational responsibility.

During fiscal year 2011, Cyberknife was capitalized by contributions from the Primary Health
System and certain other minority partners. Cyberknife provides radiation therapy services,
specifically robotic stereotactic radiosurgical services through the use of a Cyberknife
stereotactic radiosurgery system on the Primary Health System’s campus. At June 30, 2015, and
2014, the Primary Health System owned 51% of Cyberknife’s outstanding membership units.
The Medical Group was formed on June 30, 2011 and will provide professional healthcare and
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

related services to the public through its employed and contracted licensed physicians and other
supporting healthcare providers. The Medical Group has no members; however, the Primary
Health System may access the Medical Group’s services. The Medical Group is currently not

active.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The following key financial indicators are for Erlanger Health System as a whole. They are
inclusive of the Primary Health System, ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., and the 51%
controlling share of Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC.

Excess revenues over expenses for Erlanger Health System for fiscal year 2015 is $37
million compared to excess of revenue over expenses of $11 million for fiscal year 2014.

Excess revenues over expenses from operations for Erlanger Health System for fiscal
year 2015 is $48 million compared to excess of revenue over expenses of $18 million for
fiscal year 2014.

Total cash and investment reserves at June 30, 2015 are $102 million (excluding $103
million in capital investment funds and $84 million of funds held by Trustees or restricted

by donors or others).

Net days in accounts receivable for Erlanger Health System (utilizing a three month
rolling average of net revenue) is 47 days at June 30, 2015 compared to 50 days at June
30,2014.

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $18.8 million in public hospital
supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee compared to $19.6 million in fiscal
year 2014. .

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $17.4 million in essential access
payments from the State of Tennessee compare to $12.8 million in fiscal year 2014
compared to $12.8 million in fiscal year 2014.

For both fiscal year 2015 and 2014, Erlanger Health System did not recognize
disproportionate share payments from the State of Tennessee.

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $1.1 million in trauma fund
payments from the State of Tennessee compared to $0.9 million in fiscal year 2014.




CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

The required bond covenant ratios for fiscal year 2015 compared to bond requirements are as
follows: :

Bond Insurer
Master Requirements
June 30, Trust 14 04
2015 Indenture Series Series
Debt service coverage ratio 541 1.10 1.35 1.35
Current ratio 2.67 N/A 1.50 1.50
Days cash on hand 104 N/A 65 days 65 days
Indebtedness ratio 52% N/A 65% 65%

The trust indentures and related documents underlying the bonds contain certain covenants and
restrictions. For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System met all required debt covenants.

NET POSITION

Erlanger Health System'’s net position for the combined Primary Health System and Aggregate
Discretely Presented Component Units increased by approximately $37.6 million in fiscal year
2015. Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of
the Primary Health System’s operating activities. Discussion focuses on the Primary Health
System and its blended component units.

Net position for the Primary Health System increased from $195 million as of June 30, 2014 to
$211 million as of June 30, 2015. The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
increased from 2.52 in 2014 to 2.67 in 2015 for the Primary Health System.

Table 1~ Net Position (in Millions)

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary FPresented  Primary Presented
Health Component  Health Component

System Units System Unils
Current and other assets 5 442 % 13 3 332§ 12
Capital assets 142 8 149 9
Total assets 585 21 480 21
Deferred ouflows of resources 6 - 1 -
$ 590 $ 21 § 481 § 21




CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary Presented  Primary Presented
ITeaith Component  Health Component
System Units System Units
Long-term debt outstanding $ 213 § - 8 159 % 4
Other liabilities 163 6 123 3
Total liabilities 376 6 282 7
Deferred inflows of resources 4 - 4 -
$ 380 $ 6 § 286 $ 7
Net position
Net investment in capital assets $ 2 8 5% 1§ 5
Restricted, expendable 3 - 2 -
Unrestricted 206 10 191 9
Total net position ~ § 210§ 15 § 194 § 14

Days in cash increased from 88 days as of June 30, 2014 to 104 days as of June 30, 2015 for the
Primary Health System resulting from increased opetating margins.

Days in net accounts receivable for the Primary Health System were 51 days as of June 30, 2015
and 2014.

Capital assets for the Primary Health System were $142 million as of June 30, 2015. Additions
for fiscal year 2015 totaled $18 million while $16 million of assets were retired or sold.
Depreciation expense was $25 million for the Primary Health System. Retirement of assets
reduced accumulated depreciation by $11 million in fiscal year 2015. Construction in progress
was $11 million as of June 30, 2015. Tnclnded in construction in progress is the Erlanger East
expansion totaling $5.7 million.

Long-term debt outstanding amounted to $213 million as of June 30, 2015 compared to $159
million as of June 30, 2014. The increase in long-term debt reflects $71 million of new money
included in the Series 2014 Bonds.

Other liabilities for the Primary Health System were $163 million as of June 30, 2015 compared
to $123 million as of June 30, 2014, due in part to the recognition of the pension liability
required by a new accounting standard.




CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Exrlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The focus for Erlanger Health System’s management team during fiscal year 2015 was to
increase the Primary Health System’s volumes in a number of key product lines in a flat market,
improve relationships with stakeholders, and improve operating efficiencies.

Table 2- Changes in Net Position (in Millions)

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary Presented  Primary Presented
Health Component  Health Component

System Units System Units
Net patient revenue $ 670 $ 1 $ 571 $ 11
Other revenue 16 18 21 17
Total revenue 686 29 592 28
Expenses:

Salaries 333 14 305 14
Supplies and other expenses 140 10 126 10
Purchased services 141 3 117 3
Depreciation and amortization 25 1 26 1
Total expenses 638 28 574 28

Operating income revenues in
excess of (less than) expenses 47 1 18 1
Nonoperating gains 2 - 2 -
Interest expense and other 12) - ©®) -
Operating/capital confributions 0 - 1 -
Change in net position  $ 38 § 13 12 $ 1

Net patient service revenue for the Primary Health System increased from $571 million in fiscal
year 2014 to $670 million in fiscal year 2015. Admissions for fiscal year 2015 wete 33,340
compared to 30,394 for fiscal year 2014, a 9.7% increase. Observation days decreased from
8,398 for fiscal year 2014 to 7,836 for fiscal year 2015, or by 6.7%. Air ambulance flights
increased from 1,870 flights for fiscal 2014 to 1,994 flights for fiscal year 2015, or by 6.6%.
Medicare case mix index was 1.88 for fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Total surgical inpatients
increased from 9,198 for fiscal year 2014 to 9,856 for fiscal 2015, or by 7.2%. Total surgical
outpatients for fiscal year 2015 increased by 4.0% over the prior year. Total emergency room
visits were 150,851 for fiscal year 2015, a 14.3 % increase over fiscal year 2014.




CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Salaries for the Primary Health System increased from $305 million in fiscal year 2014 to $333
million in fiscal year 2015. Staffing was in concert with the increased volumes. Paid FTE’s per
adjusted occupied bed decreased from 5.1 in fiscal year 2014 to 4.8 in fiscal year 2015, however,
salary cost for fiscal year 2015 per hour increased by 8.6% over the prior year. A 2% raise for
full time employees (excluding bedside nurses) was implemented in January 2015 and a2 2.7%
market adjustment for bedside nurses was implemented in July 2014. The post-retirement
benefits were discontinued in January 2015,

Supplies and other expenses increased from $126 million for fiscal year 2014 to $140 million in
fiscal year 2015. Supplies and drug costs trended with the volume increases. Supplies and drugs
per adjusted admission for the Primary Health System increased from $1,555 in fiscal year 2014
to $1,573 in fiscal year 2015.

Purchased Services increased from $117 million in fiscal year 2014 to $141 million in fiscal year
2015 due in part to an increase in contracted hospitalist fees resulting from increased volumes.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased from $26 million in fiscal year 2014 to $25
million in fiscal year 2015 based on the capital spending plan.

Interest expense, including gain (or loss) on mark-to-market of interest rate swaps in 2014,

increased from $9 million in fiscal year 2014 to $12 million in fiscal year 2015. The Series 2014

Bonds issued in December 2014 resulted in $71 million in additional debt. The interest rate
“ swaps agreements were terminated in fiscal year 2015.

OUTLOOK

The State of Tennessee continues to review the TennCare program (the State’s Medicaid
program). For fiscal years 2012 and 2013, the State passed a Hospital Coverage Fee to offset
shortfalls in the State’s budget for TennCare. The fee remained intact and TennCare rates were -
stable in fiscal year 2014 and 2015. There could be possible TennCare rate changes in fiscal
year 2016 as a result of rate variation initiatives. Out-of-state Medicaid and TennCare changes
would affect the Primary Health System’s bottom line with TennCare and Medicaid patients
representing approximately 23% of the payer mix. Self-pay patients represent approximately 8%
of the charge utilization. Healthcare reform and future changes in Medicare regulations could
also have an adverse effect on the Primary Health System’s future operations since Medicare
represents approximately 33% of the payer mix.

During fiscal year 2014, the Primary Health was added as a participant to the Public Hospital
‘Supplemental Payment Pool for public hospitals in Tennessee through a collaborative effort with
local Mayors, State Senators and Representatives, Hamilton County Medical Society, Board
members, physicians and hospital leadership. The inclusion of the Primary Health System in the
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

pool netted $19.6 million of additional federal funding for fiscal year 2014 and $18.8 million for
fiscal year 2015. - The Primary Health System will receive this funding annually as long as the
current TennCare waiver is intact.

The Primary Health System recognized Essential Access payments totaling $17.4 million from
the State of Tennessee for fiscal year 2015, an increase of $4.6 million from fiscal year 2014.
Disproportionate share payments were not approved by Federal government for fiscal year 2014
and funds received during 2015 have not been recognized until eligibility is ‘determined.
Additionally, the Primary Health System recognized trauma funding of $1.1 million in fiscal
year 2015 compared to $0.9 million in fiscal year. Payments from the State of Tennessee for the
fiscal year 2016 are expected to be consistent with the fiscal year 2015. Due to the 1966
Hamilton County Sales Tax Agreement expiring in May 2011, the Hamilton County
appropriations to the Primary Health System have been reduced from $3 million to $1.5 million.

The focus of Erlanger Health System’s CEO and leadership team for fiscal year 2015 has been
top-line, sustainable growth, cost containment and strengthened physician relations. The
strategic plans put in place this fiscal year have yielded strong positive results and enabled
investment in Erlanger and the community. The health system has infused $71 million from bond
sales into major growth initiatives.

10



Audited Combined Financial Statements



CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2015
Primary Discretely
Heualth Presented
System Component Units
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cesh equivalents 92,642,502 $ 1,072,363
Temporary investments 3,258,275 5,637,906
Patient accounts receivable, net 93,787,459 2,040,568
Estimated amounts due from third patty payers 5,399,871 -
Due from other governments 130,037 409,825
Inventories 12,991,042 1,299,621
Receivable from Hutcheson Medical Center 20,000,000 -
Other current assets 11,832,273 1,563,932
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 240,041,459 12,024,215
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 142,126,358 8,459,744
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS, for working capital 324,862 -
ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE 186,519,439 -
OTHER ASSETS:
Prepaid bond insurance 890,721 -
Equity in discretely presented component units 14,478,062 -
Other assets 189,079 557,145
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 15,557,862 557,145
TOTAL ASSETS 584,569,980 21,041,104
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments 3,959,346 -
Deferred amounts from debt refunding 1,724,071 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,683,417 -
COMBINED ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 590,253,397 § 21,041,104
11

See notes to combined financial statements.



CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statements of Net Position - Continued

June 30, 2015
Primary Discretely
Health Presented
System Component Uniis
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 52,923,265 § 1,361,173
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 25,723,976 1,099,831
Due to other governments 409,825 130,037
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 4,782,194 3,036,295
Other current liabilities 7,456,250 178,113
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 91,295,510 5,805,449
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL
LEASE OBLIGATIONS 213,102,723 110,221
NET PENSION LIABILITY 51,857,463 -
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 19,496,243 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 375,751,939 5,915,670
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments 318,312 -
Deferred gain from sale-leaseback 3,470,969 -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES 3,789,281 =
NET POSITION:
Unrestricted 205,862,075 9,755,724
Net investent in capital assets 1,838,341 5,369,710
Restricted expendable:
Health plan trust 1,623,416 -
Donor restricted 1,388,345 =
TOTAL NET POSITION 210,712,177 15,125,434
COMBINED LIABILITES, DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES ANDNETPOSITION § 590,253,397 § 21,041,104
See notes to combined financial statements. 12



CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statements of Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Primary Discretely
Health Presented
System Component Units

OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges for services:

Net patient service revenue
Other revenue

> TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Purchased services
Insyrance and taxes
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Gain on disposal of assets

Interest and investment income, net of fees

Net gain from discretely presented component units
Interest expense

Provision for income taxes

Change in mark-to-market of interest rate swaps

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
Operating distribtuions
Capital contributions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,
as previously reported
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE
IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

$ 669,863,550 11,263,001
15,712,983 18,208,040
685,576,533 29,471,041
332,652,156 14,063,605
136,259,730 10,499,399
140,782,277 2,516,607
3,479,089 352,441
25,125,088 1,148,854
638,298,340 28,580,906
47,278,193 890,135
311,556 185,913
534,193 (26,043)
353,793 .
(11,828,171) (154,532)
- (407,086)
693,533 .
(9,935,096) (401,748)
37,343,097 488,387
(25,142) =
301,429 ;
37,619,384 488,387
194,553,424 14,637,047
(21,460,631) .
173,092,793 14,637,047

$ 210,712,177 § 29,762,481

See notes to combined financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended
Primary Health System June 30 2015
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from third-party payers and patients $ 663,337,934
Payments to vendors and othess for supplies, purchased
services, and other expenses (268,727,175)
Payments to and on behalf of employees (321,733,330)
Other receipts 16,154,086
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 89,031,515
CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions (25,142)
CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets, net (23,837,648)
Proceeds from sale of assets 4,978,206
Principal paid on bonds, capital lease obligations and other (15,492,190)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 171,465,880
Payments to defeage bonds (109,805,916)
Interest payments on long-term debt (9,507,644)
Swap termination payment (3,289,113)
Capital contributions 301,429
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 14,813,004
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest, dividends, and net realized gains (losses) on investments 534,193
Change in tempotary and long-term investments
for working capital (1,872,133)
Payments received on note receivable 550,000
Net cash transferred to assets limited as to use (54,590,999)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ (55,378,939)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 48,440,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 44,202,064
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 3 92,642,502

See notes to combined financial statements. 14



CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - Continued

Primary Health System

Year Ended
June 30 2015

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilitics:
Patient accounts receivable, net
Estimated amounts due from third party payers, net
Inventories and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities
Other current and long-term liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 47,278,193

25,125,088

(14,358,498)
6,009,092
1,126,630

10,975,005
10,918,826
1,957,179

$ 89,031,515

See notes to combined financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System) ‘

Noftes to Combined Financial Statemenis

Year Ended June 30, 2015
NOTE A--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: The Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Health
System (the Primary Health System) was created by a private act passed by the General
Assembly of the State of Tennessee on March 11, 1976, and adopted by a majority of the
qualified voters of Hamilton County, Tennessee on August 5, 1976. The Chattanooga-Hamilton
County Hospital Authority consists of the Primary Health System and its aggregate discretely
presented component units as disclosed below.

The Primary Health System provides comprehensive healthcare services throughout Hamilton
and Bledsoe counties, as well as outlying areas in southeastern Tennessee and north Georgia.
These services are provided primarily through the hospital and other facilities located on the
Baroness campus of Erlanger Medical Center. The Primary Health System also operates other
hospitals and clinics throughout the area. The Primary Health System is considered the primary
governmental unit for financial reporting purposes. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these combined financial statements present
the Primary Health System and its component units. The component units discussed below are
included in the Primary Health System’s reporting entity because of the significance of their
opetational or financial relationships with the Primary Health System.

The primary mission of the Primary Health System and its component units is to provide
healthcare services to the citizens of Chattanooga, Hamilton County and the surrounding area.
Only those activities directly associated with this purpose are considered to be operating
activities. Other activities that result in gains or losses unrelated to the Primary Health System’s
primary mission are considered to be nonoperating.

Erlanger Health Plan Trust, ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC,
and UT-Erlanger Medical Group, Inc. are legally separate organizations which the Primary
Health System has determined are component units of the Primary Health System.

Blended Component Units: The financial statements of Erlanger Health Plan Trust include assets
limited as to use totaling $1,623,416 as of June 30, 2015 and net investment loss totaling $3,617
for the year ended June 30, 2015 that are blended in the combined financial statements of the
Primary Health System. The board of the Erlanger Health Plan Trust is substantially the same as
that of the Primary Health System and the Primary Health System has operational responsibility.

Discretely Presented Component Units: The discretely presented component units’ column in
the combined financial statements includes the financial data of the Primary Health System’s
other component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

separate from the Primary Health System. See the combined, condensed financial information in
Note Q.

1. ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc. and subsidiary (ContinuCare) provide health and
supportive services to individuals in their homes in the Hamilton County and north
Georgia areas. ContinuCare also provides retail pharmacy goods and services at four
locations in Hamilton County. The Primary Health System owns 100% of the stock of
ContinuCare. Separately audited financial statements for ContinuCare HealthServices,
Inc. may be obtained by mailing a request to 1501 Riverside Drive, Suite 140,
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37406.

2. Cyberknife of Chattancoga, LLC (Cyberknife) provides radiation therapy services,
specifically robotic stereotactic radiosurgical services, through the use of a cyberknife
stereotactic radiosurgery system on the Primary Health System’s campus. The Primary
Health System owns 51% of Cyberknife’s outstanding membership units and
Cyberknife is fiscally dependent on the Primary Health System.

A condition of admission as a Member of Cyberknife, is to deliver limited guaranties,
guaranteeing pro-rata repayment of indebtedness of Cyberknife incurred to finance its
equipment costs and its working capital needs. As of June 30, 2015, total debt
outstanding was $3,092,057 with payments due through 2017. Management believes
that the Primary Health System will not be required to make any payments related to
the guarantee of this indebtedness.

3. UT-Erlanger Medical Group, Inc. (the Medical Group) was formed on June 30, 2011
and will provide professional healthcare and related services to the public through
employed and contracted licensed physicians and other supporting healthcare providers.
The Medical Group has no members; however, the Primary Health System may access
the Medical Group’s services. The Primary Health System is not entitled to any
potential earnings of the Medical Group except for compensation for services rendered
to the Medical group on its behalf. However, based upon the significance of the
Medical Group’s potential operation to the Primary Health System, management
believes its exclusion would be misleading and as such, includes the Medical Group as
a component unit. The Medical Group is currently not active.

Erlanger Health System Foundations (the Foundation): The Foundation assists the Primary
Health System to promote and develop charitable and educational opportunities as they relate to
healthcare services provided by the Primary Health System. The Primary Health System is not
financially accountable for the Foundation and as a result, the Foundation has not been included
in the combined financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System) ~

Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Contributions from the Foundation totaling approximately $32,000 for the year ended June 30,
2015 were recognized as contribution revenue by the Primary Health System. The Primary
Health System provided support to the Foundation of $594,000 in 2015.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the combined financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Enterprise Fund Accounting: The Primary Health System and its blended component units
utilize the enterprise fund method of accounting whereby revenue and expenses ate reco gnized
on the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement: focus.

Recently Issued or Effective Accounting Pronouncements: Tn Tune 2012, the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions. Statement No. 68 provides guidance for improved accounting and
financial reporting by state and local government entities related to pensions. It also replaces the
requitements of GASB Statement No. 27 and Statement No. 50, as they relate to pensions that
are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet
certain criteria. Additionally, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition Jfor
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which is effective concurrent with
Statement No. 68. Among other requirements, the Primary Health System recorded a net
pension liability that is based on fiduciary plan net position rather than on plan funding. The
Primary Health System adopted these Statements in 2015 and a cumulative effect adjustment has
been recorded as a restatement of net assets as of June 30, 2014 in the combined financial

statements.

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application.  Statement No. 72 defines fair value and describes how fair value should be
measured, what assets and liabilities ‘should be measured at fair value, and what information
about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This statement will
become effective in fiscal 2016 and management does not expect any significant impact on the
combined financial statements other than additional disclosutes.

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual
basis in the period in which services are provided at rates which reflect the amount expected to
be collected. Net patient service revenue includes amounts estimated by management to be
reimbursable by third-party payer programs under payment formulas in effect. Net patient
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

revenue also includes an estimated provision for bad debts based upon management’s evaluation
of collectability based upon the age of the receivables and other criteria, such as payer
classification and management’s assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of
action it expects to take. The Primary Health System’s policies do not require collateral or other
security for accounts receivable, although the Primary Health System routinely accepts
assignment or is otherwise entitled to receive patient benefits payable under health insurance
programs, plans or policies. Supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee are recognized
when determinable (see Note B).

Charity Care: The Primary Health System accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A
patient is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain policies established by the County
Auditor with regard to the Hamilton County indigent program or by the Primary Health System
for other patients, Essentially, these policies define charity services as those services for which
minimal payment is anticipated. In assessing a patient’s inability to pay, the County and the
Primary Health System utilize the generally recognized poverty income levels, but also include
certain cases where incurred charges are significant when compared to the income of the patient.
These charges are not included in net patient service revenue.

Cash Equivalents: The Primary Health System considers all highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased, excluding amounts whose use is limited by
board designation, held by trustees under indenture agteement, or otherwise restricted as to use,

to be cash equivalents.

Inventories: Inventories consist principally of medical and surgical supplies, general store
supplies, and pharmacy items and are stated at lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or fair market

value.

Investments: The Primary Health System’s investments (including assets limited as to use) are
reported at fair market value based on quoted market prices. Assets limited as to use include
funds designated by the Board, funds held by trustees under trust indentures, and funds restricted
by donors or grantors for specific purposes. The Primary Health System considers those
investments with maturities of more than three months when purchased, maturing in more than
one year and whose use is not limited by board designation, held by trustees under indenture
agreement, or otherwise restricted as to use, to be long-term investments.

Temporary Investments: The Primary Health System considers all hlghly liquid investments
with maturities of more than three months when purchased and maturing in less than one yeat,
excluding amounts whose unse is limited by board designation, held by trustees under indenture
agreement, or otherwise restricted as to use, to be temporary investments,
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is recorded on the basis of
cost. Donated assets are recorded at their fair market value at the date of donation. Leases that
are substantially installment purchases of property are recorded as assets and amortized over
their estimated useful lives ranging from three to thirty years; related amortization is included in
depreciation expense. Depreciation expense is computed over estimated service lives of the
respective classes of assets using the straight-line method. The Primary Health System has
established a capitalization threshold for property, plant and equipment of $2,500 except for
computer equipment, which has a threshold of $1,000. Interest expense and interest income on
borrowed funds related to construction projects are capitalized during the construction period, if
material. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

The Primary Health System reviews the carrying value of capital assets if facts and
circumstances indicate that recoverability may be impaired. A capital asset is considered
impaired when its service utility has declined significantly and unexpectedly. The Primary
Health System did not experience any prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting
capital assets which would require detenmination as to whether impairment of a capital asset has
occurred during the year ended June 30, 2015,

Prepaid Bond Insurance: Financing costs related to insurance associated with bond issues are
being amortized over the terms of the respective debt issues by the effective interest method.

Compensated Absences: The Primary Health System recognizes an expense and accrues a
liability for employees’ paid annual leave and short-term disability in the period in which the
employees’ right to such compensated absences is earned. Liabilities expected to be paid within
one year are included as accrued salaries and related liabilities in the accompanying combined
statements of net position.

Derivative Instruments: The Primary Health System records all derivatives as assets or liabilities
on the combined statements of net position at estimated fair value and includes credit value
adjustments. The Primary Health System’s derivative holdings consisted of interest rate swap
agreements. Since these derivatives have not been determined to be effective, the gain or loss
resulting from changes in the fair value of the derivatives is recognized in the accompanying
combined statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position. The Primary Health
System’s objectives in using derivatives are to take advantage of the differences between taxable
and tax-exempt debt, and manage exposure to interest rate risks associated with various debt

instruments (see Note N).

Pensions: Pension amounts (net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of résources related to pensions, and pension expense, fiduciary net position of the
Primary Health System’s pension plan and additions to or deductions from the plan’s fiduciary
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

net position) have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Primary Health
System. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value

Income Taxes: The Primary Health System is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(a)
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). In
addition, it qualifies for exemption from federal income taxes pursuant to IRC Section 115 as an
instrumentality of the State of Tennessee. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been
recognized in the accompanying combined financial statements for the Primary Health System.

As a for-profit entity, ContinuCare is subject to state and federal income taxes. ContinuCare
HealthServices, Inc. and its subsidiary file consolidated federal income tax returns separately
from the Primary Health System. At June 30, 2015, ContinuCare had no significant uncertain
tax positions. Tax treturns for the years ended June 30, 2010 through 2014 are subject to
examination by taxing authorities.

As a limited liability corporation, Cyberknife, is subject to State of Tennessee income taxes. At
June 30, 2015 Cyberknife had no significant uncertain tax positions. Tax returns for the years
ended June 30, 2010 through 2014 are subject to examination by taxing authorities.

Contributed Resources: Resources restricted by donors for specific operating purposes are held
as restricted funds and are recognized as operating or capital contributions in the accompanying
combined financial statements. When expended for the intended purpose, they are reported as
operating distributions and are recognized as other operating revenue. When an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, restricted
resources are used first. Contributed resources consist of amounts restricted by donors for
specific purposes. Fundraising expenses are netted against contributions recognized.

Net Position: The net position of the Primary Health System is classified into three components,
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital and other assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the current balances of any outstanding borrowings used to finance
.the purchase or construction of those assets. The restricted expendable net.position consists of
assets that must be used for a particular purpose that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The unrestricted net position is remaining
assets that do not meet the definition of net investment in capital assets or restricted expendable.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts reported in the combined statements
of net position approximate fair value except as described below.
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Year Ended June 30, 2015

The carrying value of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (including the current portion)
was $217,884,917 as of June 30, 2015. The estimated fair value of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations (including current portion) was $223,253,248 at June 30, 2015. The fair value
of long-term debt related to fixed interest long-term debt and capital lease obligations was
estimated using discounted cash flows, based on the Primary Health System’s incremental
borrowing rates or from quotes obtained from investment advisors. The fair value of long-term
debt related to variable rate debt approximates its carrying value.

Subsequent Events: The Primary Health System evaluated all events or transactions that
occurred after June 30, 2015 through September 17, 2015 , the date the combined financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE B--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates by the
Primary Health System to net patient service revenue as presented in the combined statements of
revenue, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Primary
Health System

Inpatient service charges $ 1,231,642,020
Outpatient service charges 934,797,502
Gross patient service charges 2,166,439,522
Less: Contractual adjustments and other discounts 1,311,598,641
Charity care 92,023,486
Estimated provision for bad debts 92,953,845
1,496,575,972

Net patient service revenue $ 669,863,550

Charity Care and Community Bengfit: The Private Act of the State of Tennessee establishing the
Primary Health System obligates the Primary Health System to make its facilities and patient
care programs available to the indigent residents of Hamilton County to the extent of funds
appropriated by Hamilton County and adjusted operating profits, as defined. The annual
appropriation from Hamilton County totaled $1,500,000 for fiscal year 2015. Total charity care
charges for services provided to the certified indigent residents of Hamilton County (net of the
appropriation) were approximately $7,373,000 for the year ended June 30, 2015 for the Primary
Health System.
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Schedule of Actuarial Contributions

Year Ended June 30, 2015
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2610 2609 2068 2007 2806

Actuarially determine contributions ~ $ 4,364,255 § 12,832,292 § 11165101 $ 10367973 § B833977 $ 7,501,004 § 7,192048 § 673138 § 8,261,320 $§ 7,717.419
Actual employer contribuotions 1,000,000 - 11,165,101 10,367,970 8,833,977 7,501,004 7,152,000 6,172,593 7,550,497 8371479

Confribution deficiency $ 3,364,255 § 12832292 § - 8 3 3 - 8 - 8 948 § 558793 &  §70.823 §  (654.060)
Covered-employee payroll $117,027311 $121,093,695 $138,807,819 $147,947,134 § 144,176,724 $139,261.860 $138478,348 $127,662977 § 134,278,637 $ 137,097,040
Coniributions as a pereentage of

covered-employce payroll 0.85% 0.00% 8.04% 7.01% 6.13% 5.39% 3.19% 4.84% 5.65% 6.11%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date;  Actuarielly detexmined contribution Tates are calcolated as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which
contxibutions are reported.
Actuarial costmethod:  Entry age
Amortization method: Level dollar
Amortization period: 19 years
Asget valuation method:  4-year smoothed market
| Inflation:  2.5%
Lump sum interestrate:  4.0% (4.5% in prior year)
Salary increases: N/A
Investoent rate of return:~ 7.50%
Retirement age:  Normal retirement at 65 years, carly retirement et 55 years with 10 years of service
Mortality:  RP-2014 Mortality for Employees, Heelth Annuitiants, and Disabled Annntitants with general projection per MP-2014 in 2015

RP-2000 Mortality for Employees, Health Annuitisnts, and Dissbled Anmtitants projected to 2018 per Scale AA. in pricr year
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Current Patient Transfer Agreements-01072016
Vendor Gther

Department Organization

Name

Contract Contract Type Status Effective Date Expiration Date Description

Number

Party

7157 - Renal Erlanger Health  2002.4290C Patient Transfer = Sweetwater Current 06/19/2009 Evergreen Provide Renal

Transplant Donor  System Agreement Dialysis Center Transplantation
and other
services to Clinic
patients

7158 - Renal Erlanger Heaith  2002:.1508C Patient Transfer  Dialysis Clinic, Inc Current 03/23/1998 Evergreen DCI Patient

Transplant System Agreement Transfer

Administration Agreements (all
attachments)

7158 - Renal Erlanger Health  2002.1636C Patient Transfer  Rhea County Current 09/01/1989 Evergreen Renal Transplant

Transplant System Agreement Medical Center Services

Administration (Transfer)

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1292C Patient Transfer  Life Care Center Current 01/01/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement of Collegedale Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1293C Patient Transfer  Marshall Medical Current 02/01/2000 Evergreen Pediatric Patient

Logistics System Agreement nm:ﬂm.« 20._.\:4 - . Transfer

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1294C Patient Transfer  Life Care Center Current 01/01/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement of Red Bank Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1306C Patient Transfer  Tender Loving Current 01/01/1995 Evergreen Hospice Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Care

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1317C Patient Transfer  LaFayette Health Current 01/31/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Care Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002,1321C Patient Transfer Jefferson Current 10/22/2004 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Memorial Hospital Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1336C Patient Transfer = Mountain Creek  Current 01/20/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics ) System B Agreement Manor Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1337C Patient Transfer ~ Murphy Medical  Current 04/01/2000 Evergreen Pediatric Patient

Logistics System Agreement Center Transfer

) Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1342C Patient Transfer  Northside Hospital Current 04/10/1992 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1363C Patient Transfer = Renaissance Current 04/26/1990 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Agreement

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.1372C Patient Transfer  Rivermont Current 01/25/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement Convalescent

) Center

8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1384C Patient Transfer = The Health Center Current 06/18/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer

Logistics System Agreement at Standifer Place

Linda Bullard-010716 150652518 Page 1 of 5 Printed Jan 7, 16 at 03:06
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Department Organization Contract Conftract Type Vendor Cther Status Effective Date Expiration Date Descriptiocn
YED Number Party
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002,1385C Patient Transfer = Shepherd Hills Current 01/25/1985 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Health Care Agreement
Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1388C Patient Transfer = Methodist Medical Current 02/06/2002 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.1389C Patient Transfer = Brookewood Current 06/27/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System ‘Agreement Medical Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1390C Patient Transfer = Continuum Care  Current 02/01/1999 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Corporation d/b/a Agreement
Spring City Health
Care Center .
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1430C Patient Transfer Bledsoe Current 06/27/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Community
. Medical Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1446C Patient Transfer  The University of Current 05/28/2002 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Tennessee Agreement
Medical Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1461C Patient Transfer  Erlanger Bledsoe Current 10/01/2001 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1483C Patient Transfer  Cookeville Current 02/10/2010 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Regional Medical Agreement
Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1498C Patient Transfer  Scott County Current 01/11/2001 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Hospital Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1499C Patient Transfer ~ Wellmont Health Current 06/30/2001 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Systems Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1502C Patient Transfer Laughlin Memorial Current 11/23/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Hospital, Inc Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1539C Patient Transfer  Fort Sanders Park Current 10/22/1999 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement West Medical Agreement
) Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1550C Patient Transfer  Johnson City Current 05/29/2002 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Medical Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002,1576C Patient Transfer  Life Care Center Current 01/25/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement of Chattanooga Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1594C Patient Transfer St Barnabas Current 01/25/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Nursing Home Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1599C Patient Transfer  North Jackson Current 02/01/2000 Evergreen Pediatric Patient
Logistics System Agreement Hospital Transfer
. Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1605C Patient Transfer  National Health Current 05/17/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Care of Rossville Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.1606C Patient Transfer  National Health ~ Current 05/22/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Care of Fort Agreement
Oglethorpe
Linda Bullard-010716 150652518 Page 2 of 5 Printed Jan 7, 16 at 03:06
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Department

Organization
Name

Contract
Number

Contract Type

Vendor Other
Party

Status

Effective Date

Expiration Date Description

B028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1607C Patient Transfer  National Current 06/20/2012 06/19/2016 Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Healthcare of Agreement
Dunlap
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.1608C Patient Transfer  National Health Current 05/15/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Care of Athens Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1623C Patient Transfer  Shriners Hospitals Current 07/01/2000 Evergreen Pediatric Patient
Logistics System Agreement for Children Transfer
Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1634C Patient Transfer = Rhea Medical Current 02/06/2002 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1650C Patient Transfer  Siskin Hospital for Current 02/09/1990 Evergreen Shared Services
Logistics System Agreement Physical
Rehabilitation
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1670C Patient Transfer  Alexian Village of Current 01/01/1995 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Chattanooga Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1685C Patient Transfer  Blount Memorial Current 02/07/2001 Evergreen Pediatric Patient
Logistics System Agreement Hospital Transfer
) Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1714C Patient Transfer  Columbia Indian Current 01/13/1997 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Path Medical Agreement
Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1715C Patient Transfer Columbia East Current 03/31/1998 Evergreen Pediatric Patient
Logistics System Agreement Ridge Hospital Transfer
Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1716C Patient Transfer  East Ridge Current 10/22/1996 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Hospital Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002,1717C Patient Transfer  NovaMed Eye and Current 06/27/2002 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Laser Surgery, Agreement
Center of
Chattanooga
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.1750C Patient Transfer  Jamestown Current 05/14/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Regional Medical Agreement
Center, f/k/a
Fentress County
Hospital
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1753C Patient Transfer  Cartersville Current 05/21/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Medical Center, Agreement
LLC d/b/a
Cartersville
Medical Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.1766C Patient Transfer = Healthsouth Current 04/13/1999 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Chattanooga Agreement
Surgery Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health - 2002.2377C Patient Transfer St Mary's Health  Current 04/01/2003 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement System, Inc Agreement
Linda Bullard-010716 150652518 Page 3 of 5 Printed Jan 7, 16 at 03:06
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Department

8028 - Patient

Organization
Name

Erlanger Health

Contract
Number

Contract Type

Vendor Cther
Party

Status

Effective Date

Expiration Date Description

2002,2531C Patient Transfer = Memorial Current 02/01/2015 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Healthcare Agreement
System d/b/a
Memorial Hospital
and Memorial
North Park
. Hospital .
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.2697C Patient Transfer Redmond Current OH\HQ.\NOHN Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Regional Medical Agreement
Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.2699C Patient Transfer ~ Murray Medical Current 12/05/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.2700C Patient Transfer = Medical Center of Current 04/17/2015 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics . System . Adgreement z.m:n:mmnmﬁ ) Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.2702C Patient Transfer  Lincoln County Current 11/30/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics mxmﬂ.m:,_ o Agreement Health System Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.2703C Patient Transfer Hamilton Medical Current 11/22/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Center
8028 ~ Patient Erlanger Health  2002.2704C Patient Transfer ~ Fannin Regional  Current 06/18/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Hospital
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.2706C Patient Transfer = Cumberland Current 12/02/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Medical Center,
Inc
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002,2707C Patient Transfer  Copper Basin Current 12/01/2011 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics m.<mﬂm3 ) >o_‘.mm3m:ﬂ Medical Center Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.2830C Patient Transfer = Gordon Hospital  Current 07/01/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Agreement
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.2854C Patient Transfer  Chattanooga Current 07/25/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Rehabilitation Agreement
Hospital
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.2891C Patient Transfer  DeKalb Regional Current 09/28/2008 09/27/2016 Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Medical Center, Agreement
f/k/a Baptist
DeKalb Hospital
8028 - Patient Erfanger Health  2002.4049C Patient Transfer  Vanderbilt Current 07/01/2008 Evergreen Burn Patient
Logistics System Agreement University Medical Transfer
Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health 2002.4234C Patient Transfer  Physicians Current 04/13/2015 04/12/2059 Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Surgery Center of
Chattanooga
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health  2002.4267C Patient Transfer  Parkridge Medical Current 05/18/2012 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics m<mﬂ.m3 Agreement Center
8028 - Patient Erlanger Health ~ 2002.4833C Patient Transfer  Eye Surgery Current 10/23/2014 Evergreen Patient Transfer
Logistics System Agreement Center of
Chattanooga
Linda Bullard-010716 150652518 Page 4 of 5 Printed Jan 7, 16 at 03:06
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Department

8028 - Patient
Logistics
8028 - Patient
Logistics
8028 - Patient
Logistics

8028 - Patient
Logistics

8028 - Patient
Logistics

8028 - Patient
Logistics

8028 - Patient
Logistics

8028 - Patient
Logistics
8413 - Disaster

Management &
EOC

Organization
Name

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
Systemn

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Erlanger Health
System

Contract
Number

2002,5425C

2002.6972C

2002.6973C

2002.6974C

2002.6975C

2002.6976C

2002.6977C

2002.707C

2002.6387C

Contract Type

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Effective Date
02/16/2012
05/18/2015
05/18/2015

05/18/2015

05/18/2015

04/20/2015

05/18/2015

10/01/2001

10/10/2014

Expiration Date
Evergreen
Evergreen
Evergreen

Evergreen

Evergreen

Evergreen

Evergreen

Evergreen

Evergreen

No. Of Contract:

Description

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Patient Transfer
Agreement (Prior
Agreements
2002.4023A)

Patient Transfer
Agreement (Prior
Agreements
2002.4023A)

Patient Transfer
Agreement (Prior
Agreements
2002.4023A)

Patient Transfer
Agreement (Prior
Agreements
2002.4023A)

Patient Transfer
Agreement

Disaster Aid
Agreement
(Memorial Health
Care; Parkridge
Medical Center,
Inc; Southern
Tennessee
Medical Center
(Winchester &
Sewanee);
Copper Basin
Medical Center;
Star Regional
Medical Center-
(Athens &
Etowah); Rhea
Medical Center;
Skyridge Medical
Center)

73
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Vendor Other Status
Party
Renaissance Current
Surgery Center
Kidney Center of Current
North Georgia
Kidney Center of Current
Cleveland, LLC
Kidney Center of Current
Missionary Ridge
Kidney Center of Current
Highway 58
Chattanooga Current
Kidney Center,
LLC
Chattanooga Current
Kidney Center
North, LLC
Kindred Hospital Current
East Tennessee Current
Regional Hospitals
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State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson, 9" Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

May 2, 2016

Joseph Winick

Senior Vice President Erlanger Health Systems
975 East 3rd Street

Chattanooga, TN 37403

RE: Certificate of Need Application -- Erlanger Behavioral Health - CN1603-012
To establish an eighty-eight (88) bed mental health hospital located at an unaddressed site
at the intersection of North Holtzclaw Avenue and Citico Avenue, Chattanooga, (Hamilton
County), TN 37404. The estimated project cost is $25,112,600.

Dear Mr. Winick:

This is to acknowledge the receipt of supplemental information to your application for a
Certificate of Need. Please be advised that your application is now considered to be complete by
this office.

Your application is being forwarded to Marthagem Whitlock at the Tennessee Department of
Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for Certificate of Need review by the Division of
Planning, Research, & Forensics. You may be contacted by Ms. Whitlock or someone from her
office for additional clarification while the application is under review by the Department. Ms.
Whitlock’s contact information is Marthagem. Whitlock@tn.gov or 615-532-6717.

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated, §68-11-1601, et seq., as amended by Public
Chapter 780, the 60-day review cycle for this project will begin on May 2, 2016. The first sixty
(60) days of the cycle are assigned to the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse,
during which time a public hearing may be held on your application. You will be contacted by a
representative from this Agency to establish the date, time and place of the hearing should one be
requested. At the end of the sixty (60) day period, a written report from the Department of Health
or its representative will be forwarded to this office for Agency review within the thirty (30)-day
period immediately following. You will receive a copy of their findings. The Health Services and
Development Agency will review your application on July 27, 2016.



Mr. Winick
May 2, 2016
Page 2

Any communication regarding projects under consideration by the Health Services and
Development Agency shall be in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(d):

(1)  No communications are permitted with the members of the agency once the Letter of
Intent initiating the application process is filed with the agency. Communications
between agency members and agency staff shall not be prohibited. Any
communication received by an agency member from a person unrelated to the
applicant or party opposing the application shall be reported to the Executive
Director and a written summary of such communication shall be made part of the
certificate of need file.

2) All communications between the contact person or legal counsel for the applicant
and the Executive Director or agency staff after an application is deemed complete
and placed in the review cycle are prohibited unless submitted in writing or
confirmed in writing and made part of the certificate of need application file.
Communications for the purposes of clarification of facts and issues that may arise
after an application has been deemed complete and initiated by the Executive
Director or agency staff are not prohibited.

Should you have questions or require additional information, please contact me.

éincerely, ‘ W 9 M /ﬂ/{f;

Melanie M. Hill
Executive Director

cc: Marthagem Whitlock, TDMHSAS, PRF



State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson, 9" Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

MEMORANDUM

TO: Marthagem Whitlock, Assistant Commissioner
of Planning Research & Forensics
TN Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services
Division of Planning, Research & Forensics
Andrew Jackson Building, 5™ Floor
500 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

FROM.: Melanie M. Hill /W/f//z L

Executive Director
DATE: May 2, 2016

RE: Certificate of Need Application
Erlanger Behavioral Health - CN1603-012

Please find enclosed an application for a Certificate of Need for the above-referenced project.

This application has undergone initial review by this office and has been deemed complete. It is
being forwarded to your agency for a sixty (60) day review period to begin on May 2, 2016 and
end on July 1, 2016.

Should there be any questions regarding this application or the review cycle, please contact this
office.

Enclosure

ccs Joseph Winick, Erlanger Health Systems



LETTER OF INTENT
TENNESSEE HEALTH SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the Chattanooga Times Free Press, which is a newspaper
of general circulation in Hamilton County, Tennessee, on or before March 10, 2016, for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services & Development Agency and all interested
parties, in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 ef. seq., and the Rules of the Health Services &
Development Agency, that Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC, with an ownership type of for profit, and
to be managed by itself, intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to construct a
new psychiatric hospital with a total complement of eighty-eight (88) inpatient beds, to include
services for inpatients, outpatients and substance abuse. Further, we are requesting approval to transfer
twelve (12) licensed Geriatric — Psychiatric beds currently at Erlanger North Hospital to the new
Erlanger Behavioral Health campus. This will create a net addition of seventy-six (76) new inpatient
psychiatric beds. If approved, the number of hospital beds at Erlanger North Hospital will decrease
from fifty seven: (57) beds to forty-five (45) beds upon completion of the project. No other health care
services will be initiated or discontinued.

The facility and equipment will be located at Erlanger Behavioral Health, at a site located at the
intersection of North Holtzclaw Avenue & Citico Avenue, Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee,
37404. The total project cost is estimated to be $ 25,112,600.00. :

The anticipated date of filing the application is March 15, 2016.

The contact person for this project is Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President, Erlanger Health System,
975 Fast 3™ Street, Chattanooga, Tennessee, 37403, and by phone at (423) 778-7274.

March 8, 2016 _Joseph. Winick@erlanger.org
Date: E-Mail:

The Letter Of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the
last day for filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on fhe preceding business day. File this
form at the following address:

Health Services & Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9™ Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

= The published Letter Of ntent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. §68-11-1607(c)(1): (A) Any
health care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health
Services and Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Sexvices and
Development Agency meeting at which the application is oxiginally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to
oppose the application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to
the consideration of the application by the Agency.




Supplemental #1
-Original-

Erlanger Behavioral
Health, LLC.

CN1603-012



SUPPLEMENTAL #2
:» March 28, 2016
7111:49 am

[N

s
]

SUPPLEMENTAIL INFORMATION

Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC

Application To Initiate Psychiatric Services At The
Intersection Of North Holtzclaw Avenue And Citico Avenue,
In Chattanooga, Tennessee, With Establishment
Of An Eighty-Eight (88) Bed Inpatient Hospital
By The.Addition Of Seventy-Six (76) Psychiatric Beds
And The Transfer Of Twelve (12) Geriatric-Psychiatric Beds

From Erlanger North Hospital

Application Number CN1603-012

ERLANGER HEALTH SYSTEM
Chattanooga, Tennessee



SUPPLEMENTAL #2

March 28, 2016

] 11:49 am
Supplemental Responses To Questions Of The

Tennessee Health Services & Development Agency

1.) Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 6.

Please provide documentation, e.g., copy of a deed,
etc. that Medical Development Partners, LLC currently
owns the property of the site for the proposed
project.

The Option to Purchase Agreement is noted. However,
please clarify how the applicant can secure the
property site while 100% of the proposed project will
be funded by an unrelated party not included in the
Option to Purchase Agreement. In addition, there is
no address listed on the agreement. Please revise.

Response

A Quit Claim Deed dated December 31, 2007, filed in
the Register’s Office of Hamilton County, Tennessee, on
April 4, 2008, is attached to this supplemental
information.

A Letter of Agreement between Erlanger Health System
and Acadia Healthcare is attached to this supplemental
information. The agreement specifies the responsibilities
of each party in the joint venture and satisfactorily
outlines the two (2) stage process which will be followed
in development of this project, ultimately leading to
Acadia fully funding the project.

Attached to the CON application was a copy of the
Option To Purchase Real Estate. Along with this Option, a
copy of the ILetter of Agreement between Erlanger and the
Purchaser of the real estate, Hickory Land Co., LLC, in
which the Purchaser agrees to “irrevocably assign to
Erlanger or to a subsidiary or an affiliate of Erlanger
(including a joint venture) at Erlanger’s discretion, all
of Purchaser’s rights, benefits, title, interests,
liabilities and obligations” under the Option To Purchase.
As such, Erlanger does control the site.

The Option To Purchase does specify an address in the
first paragraph, that is 804 N. Holtzclaw Avenue. However,
there are two (2) parcels stipulated in the first

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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paragraph, those are tax parcels 146C-A022 and 146C-A023.
Since the proposed site for the new hospital straddles both
parcels, it is as yet undetermined which parcel will be the
actual mailing address of the facility.

2.) Section A, Bed Complement Data, Item 9.

It is noted 12 geriatric psychiatric beds will
transfer from Erlanger North. Please provide a bed
complement data chart for Erlanger North Hospital.

Please clarify if the proposed 88 bed psychiatric
hospital will operate under the license of Erlanger
Hospital. If so, how will a joint venture with Acadia
impact being licensed under Erlanger Health System?

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health will be licensed separately
from Erlanger Medical Center.

A bed complement chart for Erlanger North Hospital is
below.

U VErlanger ¢
Bed Type North

Medical 27
_ __ Surgical 14
Long-Term Care Hospital .
' Obstetcal
ICU/CcCcuU 4
Neonatal ICU
B Pediatric
Adull Psychiatric
Geriatric Psychiatric | 12
Child / Adolescenl Psychlatric
Rehabilitation
Nursing Facillty (non-Meld_lcaId Cerllfied)
‘Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)
Nursing Facillty Level 2 (Medicare only)
Nursing Facility Level 2 (dually certified — Medicald / Medicare)
L ICF /MR
Adult Chemical Dependency
Child & Adolescent Chemical Dependency
Swing _BedAs,’
Mental Health Residential Treatment
Residential Hospice

TOTAL 57
3.) Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 13.

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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It is noted the applicant and one other provider are
enrolled in Blue Network S, and Erlanger is the only
provider enrolled in Network E. What is the name of
the other provider enrolled in Network S? Please

provide a source for enrollment numbers provided for

both networks.

Please define Blue Network E and Blue Network $ and
provide an overview of behavioral and substance abuse
benefits covered under each plan.

What is Blue Network P?

The applicant references behavioral health
organizations (BHOs). Please name the BHOs the

applicant is referencing.

Response

The other provider in Chattanooga which is enrolled in
Blue Network S is Parkridge Health System. The source of
enrollment data for Blue Network E and Blue Network S, was
information provided by Blue Cross / Blue Shield

leadership.

Blue Network E is described on the Blue Cross / Blue
Shield of Tennessee website as the “Essential” network.
Blue Network S is described as the “Select” network. Blue
Network P 1s described as the “Preferred” network. '

Generally, behavioral health benefits are a covered
service through the Blue networks when they are received
from a contracted provider or a non-contracted provider
depending on the member’s health care benefit plan.
Program services are covered when received in a licensed
behavioral health facility program, or unit for mental
health disorders or substance use disorders and when prior
authorization is given by the member’s health care benefit
plan. Program services include acute care, residential
care, partial hospitalization, intensive outpatient
programs, and inpatient and outpatient electroconvulsive

therapy (ECT).

As part of the HSDA form pertaining to Section A, Item
13, reference 1is made to Behavioral Health Orgnization’s
which are part of the TennCare program. Applicant’s

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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mention of “other BHO’s” is a reference to this item. Upon

review of the TennCare website, it does not at this point
in time list any specific BHO’s, however, applicant will
endeavor to contract with any mental health payor
organization which participates in the TennCare program.

4.) Section B, Project Description, Item 1.

It is noted the applicant Erlanger Behavioral Health
will be initially owned by Erlanger Health System.

In addition, it is noted the proposed facility will in
the future become a joint wventure ownership
arrangement between Erlanger Health System and Acadia
Healthcare. However, please address the following:

° Why did the applicant not form a joint ownership
agreement prior to filing an application for
a Certificate of Need?

e Will there be a future management company?

° Will the future joint ownership be charged
management fees?

° What is the timeframe of the future joint
ownership®?

o What is the involvement of Acadia in the

development and filing of this application
for a Certificate of Need?

o What will be Acadia Healthcare’s percentage of
Erlanger Behavioral Health, LLC ownership?

If approved, please clarify if the applicant will be
classified as a safety net provider by the Tennessee
Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse

Services.

What type of outpatient, intensive outpatient, and
partial hospitalization programs are associated with
this proposed project?

Please clarify if the proposed eighty-eight (88) bed
inpatient psychiatric hospital will be classified as
an Institution for Mental Disease (IMD) licensed by
the Department of Mental Health, or will be licensed
as a department of Erlanger Health System and licensed
by the Department of Health.

Please describe the applicant’s experience in

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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operating the following:
° An Adult Inpatient Chemical Dependency Unit
° An Adult Psychiatric Unit
o An Child and Adolescent Inpatient Psychiatric
Unit
o A Gero-Inpatient Psychiatric Unit

The applicant notes there are a total of 252 licensed
inpatient beds in the proposed service area. Does
this number include licensed beds at Moccasin Bend
Mental Health Institute (MBMHI)? If not, what is the
number of licensed beds with MBHMI included?

It is noted Acadia Healthcare will fund the
$25,112,600 proposed project. If so, please provide
the documentation that obligates Acadia Healthcare to
fund the proposed project.

Response

Erlanger has been in discussion with Acadia but only
recently crafted and agreed to a Letter of Intent.
Erlanger was well aware of the need for additional
behavioral health services and has been working to address
this need in an effective manner. Approval was received
from the US Health Resources & Services Administration to
initiate behavioral health at our FQHC sites approximately
three years ago. We also added a psychiatry division with
psychiatrist and placed LCSW's in our Emergency Department
to address the large volume of patients with co- existing
medical and behavioral health conditions. With a large
volume of patients currently served, we believe the timing
is right to move forward with the filing of the Certificate
of Need, now that the Letter of Intent has been completed.
We expect to be working to develop the joint venture
concurrently with the review of the Certificate of Need.

A copy of the ILetter of Agreement between Erlanger
Health System and Acadia Healthcare is attached to this
supplemental information. The agreement specifies a two
(2) stage process that will be followed for development of

this project.

There will not be a future management company, the CON
application spe01f1es that management officers will be
hired by Erlanger Behavioral Health. There will not be
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“management fees”, per se, as understood in the traditional

sense of that term because the officers will be hired
directly by Erlanger Behavioral Health. However, there
will be “fees” from Acadia for support services to Erlanger
Behavioral Health, equal to 2% of net revenue as outlined
in paragraph eight (8) of the agreement. The 2% fees were
not identified and were inadvertently included in Other
Expenses on the Projected Data Chart. For this reason we
have included a replacement page 57 for the Projected Data

Chart.

As specified in the Letter of Agreement, the second
stage of project development will include determination of
specific details after the CON is approved. It is
anticipated that the time period necessary to conclude
these detail discussions will be 60 to 90 days, or less.

The involvement of Acadia in development and filing
the CON application is to provide the architectural and
engineering support, as well as necessary information
pertaining to operation of a psychiatric hospital, such as
the financial information. A majority of the preliminary
development work has been conducted by Erlanger, with
collaboration by Acadia, such as site selection, etc.

As of this point in time, it i1s unknown precisely what
Acadia’s ownership percentage will be. Erlanger and Acadia
will work with an independent valuation consultant to
determine proportional ownership interests by the
respective parties.

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve the defined
service area as a “safety net provider” as that term is
generally understood, this is outlined in the Letter of
Agreement between Erlanger and Acadia. While the Dept. Of
Mental Health does not have such a designation as does the
Bureau of TennCare, applicant will operate in such a manner
which “recognizes and promotes Erlanger’s objective of
providing charity care”. (Please see paragraph 7 of the
Letter Of Agreement.)

Erlanger Behavioral Health will be classified and
licensed as an Institution for Mental Disease (IMD)
licensed by the Dept. of Mental Health, not as a department
of Erlanger Medical Center.

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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As a newly established provider, Erlanger Behavioral

Health will draw upon the experience of both Erlanger and
Acadia in operating psychiatric programs. Erlanger Nort
Hospital currently operates an inpatient geriatric '
psychiatric program, to be relocated to the new hospital,
and Acadia has experience in the operation of adult
psychiatric units, child and adolescent inpatient unit and
adult chemical dependency programs with 585 facilities
worldwide. Erlanger also has a psychiatric division with
employed psychiatrist and provides service to inpatients as
well as children in the emergency department and its
Federally Qualified Health Centers.

The analysis of current bed supply in the service area
presented in the CON application does not include Moccasin
Bend Mental Health Institute. The number of beds at MBMHI
is 150. It should be noted that MBMHI service area is the
52 counties in East Tennessee extending as far north as the
Virginia and Kentucky state lines; the service area for
Erlanger Behavioral Health is only 18 counties in Southeast
Tennessee. The beds at MBMHI are utilized for patients
with long term mental health issues, not those generally
served in community based programs. Further, it is noted
that in the Agency’s staff report for the Crestwyn
Behavioral Health application (no. CN1310-040), it was
stated that “traditionally, the State operated mental
health institutions care for long term mental health
patients”. Also, that “the applicant did not assess the
impact the proposal would have on either of the State
facilities”.1

As to Acadia’s obligaton to fund the project, please
see paragraph 3(c) of the Letter of Agreement which
specifies that Acadia will pay for design & construction,
etc.

5.) Section B, Project Description, Item II.A.

Please clarify if the eighteen adolescent and child
unit will be coed. If so, how and when will females
and males be segregated?

Please clarify if all the proposed psychiatric units
will be locked.

1 See Application Summary by HSDA staff dated October 13, 2013, p. 4, Ttem C-3, Crestwyn Behavioral
Health, CON No. CN1310-040.
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What are the proposed age ranges for each of the three
proposed psychiatric units and adult chemical
dependency unit?

Response

The child & adolescent unit of Erlanger Behavioral
Health will be co-ed. Generally, males will be assigned to
rooms on one side of the hallway and females will be
assigned to rooms on the other side of the hallway.

Each of the proposed units within the facility will be
locked.

The proposed age ranges for the units are as follows.

Unit Description Age Range
Child / Adolescent 0-17
Adult . 18-64
Geriatric 65+

Adult Chemical Dependency 18-64

6.) Section B, Project Description Item III.A. (Plot Plan).

The plot plan is noted. Please provide a revised plot
plan that includes the size of site (in acres).

Response

A revised plot plan with the size of the site (in
acres) 1is attached to this supplemental information.

7.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specifiec
Criteria—-Psychiatric Inpatient Services A. Need, 1).

Please include Moccasin Bend Mental Health Institute’s
licensed beds in the bed calculations on page 33, and
in the tables and narrative response on page 34 and
submit a replacement page. The Guidélines for Growth
does not exclude state Mental Health Institutes in
determining psychiatric bed need.

Please reference the data source the applicant used to
determine the bed need in the proposed service area.

Erlanger Behavioral Health :
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Response

As requested, MBMHI has been added to the inventory of
current bed supply for psychiatric services in the defined
service area. The data source for population information
in this analysis was obtained from Claritas, a leading
provider of demographic data. Population data was not
available on the Tennessee Dept. of Health website. The
replacement pages (34-36) are attached to this supplemental

information.

However, applicant will point out that information on
the MBMHI website indicates that ..

“MBMHI assists patients who are not typically served by the
private service sector and have no other inpatient treatment
resources available to them.”

Thus, MBMHI itself categorically states that it does serve
those who are covered by the private service sector.

It should be noted that MBMHI service area is the 52
counties in East Tennessee extending as far north as the
Virginia and Kentucky state lines; the service area for
Erlanger Behavioral Health is only 18 counties in Southeast
Tennessee. The beds at MBMHI are utilized for patients
with long term mental health issues, not those generally
served in community based programs. Further, it is noted
that in the Agency’s staff report for the Crestwyn
Behavioral Health application (no. CN1310-040), it was
stated that “traditionally, the State operated mental
health institutions care for long term mental health _
patients”. Also, that “the applicant did not assess the
impact the proposal would have on either of the State

facilities”.

8.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services A. Need, 3).

What is the calculated bed need for child/adolescents
ages 0-17? Please describe the age range of patients
served by the proposed child adolescent psychiatric

program.

Response

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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The need information presented in the CON application
indicates that there is an over supply of five (5)
child/adolescent psychiatric beds in the defined service
area for the age group 0-17. However, it should be noted
that Parkridge .Valley Hospital for Children & Adolescents,
had a utilization rate of 79.6%, or 80.0%, for CY 2014.:2
From a health planning perspective, the threshold for
consideration of additional beds in a service category is
traditionally 80.0%. -

Erlanger Behavioral Health will serve children and
adolescents with emotional and behavioral health problems,
of all ages. Individualized care plans will provide a
foundation for stabilization for those in crisis or
otherwise in need of this service. The professional team
will collaborate with outpatient treatment providers and
provide patient and family education to ensure those
involved with the patient’s care understand emotional
health issues as well as symptom management. For this age
group, family involvement is crucial.

9.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services B.l.
(Service Area).

Please submit an online request to the Tennessee
Department of Health, Division of Health Statistics,
requesting patient discharge. utilization data
(inpatient day or discharge patient days) for the most
recent year available by MCD19 (Mental Diseases and
Disorders) and MCD 20 (Alcohol/Drug Abuse &
Alcohol/Drug-Induced Organic Mental Disorders) by
patient origin by facility by county for the proposed
service area. Please include the data in a table
listing the facility and associated inpatient days or
discharge patient days for the age groups 0-17, 18-64,
and 65+.

Response

The number of inpatient days by county of patient
origin for MDC’s 19 and 20, is attached to this
supplemental request. '

2 The calculation for utilization is 86 average daily census divided by 108 psychiafric beds, this
informatjon is derived from the Joint Annual Report for CY 2014 p. 23.
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(Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services) B. 2. Service
Area Demographics and Section C. Need. Item 4.A

Please complete the following chart for each county in

the proposed service area.

Demographic Data

County #1

County
#2

Etc.

Service State of TN
Area Total
Total

0-17 Population-2016

0-17 Population-2020

0-17 Population % Change

Population

| 0-17 Population % of Total

Response

As requested,

Erlanger Behavioral Health

the table has been completed..
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Erlanger Bevioral Health -- 0-17 Age Group Demographics

0-17 Pop.  0-17 Pop.  0-17 Pop. 0-17 Pop. 0-17 Pop.
CY 2016 CY2020 %Change % Of Total-2016 % Of Total -2020

Hamilton County, TN 76,469 78,962 3.3% 22.2% 22.7%
Bradley County, TN 22,712 22,612 -0.4% 6.6% 6.5%
Marion County, TN 3,533 5,811 64.5% 1.0% 1.7%
Grundy County, TN 2,891 2,758 -4.6% 0.8% 0.8%
Sequatchie County, TN 3,366 3,406 1.2% 1.0% 1.0%
Bledsoe County, TN 2,544 2,437 -4.2% 0.7% 0.7%
Rhea County, TN 8,897 8,952 0.6% 2.6% 2.6%
Meigs County, TN 2,339 2,213 -5.4% 0.7% 0.6%
McMinn County, TN 11,293 11,045 -2.2% 3.3% 3.2%
Polk County, TN 3,493 3,352 -4.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Dade County, GA 3,262 3,118 ~4.4% " 0.9% 0.9%
Walker County, GA 15,052 14,548 -3.3% 4.4% 4.2%
Catoosa County, GA 15,258 14,909 -2.3% 4.4% 4.3%
DeKalb County, AL 17,601 17,268 -1.9% 5.1% ) 5.0%
Ja_ck_spn County, AL 11,213 10,768 -4.0% 3.3% 3.1%
Chatooga County, GA 5,419 - 5168 -4.6% 1.6% 1.5%
Fannin County, GA 4,311 4,263 -1.1% 1.3% 1.2%
Gilmer County, GA 5,241 6,048 15.4% 1.5% 1.7%
'Gordon County, GA 14,355 14,197 -L1% 4.2% 4.1%
Murray County, GA 9,911 9,570 -3.4% 2.9% 2.8%
Whitfield County, GA 28,674 29,927 4.4% 8.3% 8.6%
Cherokee County, NC 4,842 4,694 -3.1% 1.4% 1.4%
Coffee County, TN 12,589 12,511 -0.6% 3.7% 3.6%
: Cumberland County, TN 10,642 10,820 1.7% 3.1% 3.1%
Franklin County, TN 8,363 8,069 -3.5% 2.4% 2.3%
loudon County, N 10,082 10266  .1.8% 2.9% . 3.0%
Monroe County, TN 9,834 9,708 -1.3% 2.9% 2.8%
Roane County, TN 10,020 9,351 -6.7% 2.9% 2.7%
:Van Buren County, TN 1,026 965 -5.9% 0.3% 0.3%
"Warren County, TN 9,483 9,421 -0.7% 2.8% 2.7%
Total >>>> 344,715 347,137 0.7% 100.0% 100.0%

11.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services C. 1.
Relationship to existing applicable plans (State,
City, County, Regional Plans)

Other than the Tennessee Guidelines for Growth, are
there other existing applicable plans (city, county,
and/or regional) that has a relationship to the
proposed project? Please clarify.

Response
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Applicant is not aware of any other “plans” that have
a relationship to this proposal. We checked the
Chattanooga—Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency, the
City of Chattanooga, and Hamilton County. While we were
not able to identify any “plans”, per se, we have been able
to validate certain other pertinent information relating to

this project.

. For instance, in 2015 the Hamilton County Health Dept.
published a report titled “Picture Of Our Health - Hamilton
County, Tennessee — 2015 Community Health Profile”. This

report presents a “snapshot” of the community’s health.

The suicide rate is cited as having increased by 27.3%

between 2000 and 2015, from a rate of 11.3 per 100,000 to a

rate of 14.4.

The Tennessee Dept. of Mental Health 2015 Data Book,
states that Tennessee ranks in the bottom 10 states in the
nation, for the following indicators of behavioral health.

- Adults that smoke everyday.

— Adults limited in activity due to physical, mental
or emotional problems.

- Adults with mental illness in the past year.

- Youth that used methamphetamine 10 or more times
during their lifetime.

- Youth that used prescription drugs without a
doctor’s prescription.

The National Institute of Mental Health reports on
it’s website that the prevalence of Schizophrenia is 1.1%
of the general population, and 60% of those will utilize
some form of healthcare service in a year. Therefore,
within the defined service area for this Erlanger
Behavioral Health, a total of 17,285 people have
Schizophrenia and 10,371 will utilize healthcare services

each year.

These indicators all point to the acute need for
Erlanger Behavioral Health.

12.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services C. 4.
Relationship to existing applicable plans
(Involuntary Admissions).

Erlanger Behavioral Health
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Does the applicant expect to accept all involuntary
admissions (all.ages)? Will the applicant have the
expertise and staff to monitor patients who may
require one to one observation or may require special
treatment?

Please discuss examples of when the applicant could
not accept an “Involuntary Admission.” In a situation
where the applicant could not take an “Involuntary
Admission”, what protocols would the applicant enact
to assure the patient could receive proper treatment?

Response

Generally, applicant will accept all involuntary
admissions, to include all ages. However, this policy is
subject to bed availability within the facility, the
hospital’s current staffing and treatment loads, etc.
Erlanger Behavioral Health will have appropriate expertise
and staff to monitor patients on a one to one basis, if
needed. '

In case an involuntary admission cannot be accepted,
for the reasons cited above, Erlanger Behavioral Health
will work with the referring source to identify altermative
placement.

13.) Section C, Need, Item 1 a., (Project Specific
Criteria-Psychiatric Inpatient Services D.1.
(Relationship to Existing Similar Services).

The narrative response on page 40 and utilization
tables on page 41 are noted. However, please include
MBMHI in the narrative response and utilization tables
and submit a replacement page. In addition, please
add a column in the tables to show % change from 2011
to 2014.

Response

As requested, MBMHI has been added to the table and
the trend has been calculated between 2011 - 2014. The
replacements for pages 40 and 41 are attached to this
supplemental information.
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However, applicant will point out that information on

the MBMHI website indicates that ..

“MBMHI assists patients who are not typically served by the
private service sector and have no other inpatient treatment
resources available to them.”

Thus, MBMHI itself categorically states that it does serve
those who are covered by the private service sector.

It should be noted that MBMHI service area is the 52
counties in East Tennessee extending as far north as the
Virginia and Kentucky state lines; the service area for
Erlanger Behavioral Health is only 18 counties in Southeast
Tennessee. The beds at MBMHI are utilized for patients
with long term mental health issues, not those generally
served in community based programs. Further, it is noted
that in the Agency’s staff report for the Crestwyn
Behavioral Health application (no. CN1310-040), it was
stated that “traditionally, the State operated mental
health institutions care for long term mental health
patients”. Also, <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>